STATE OF CALIFORNIA

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
Division of Financial Assistance

P. O. Box 944212, Sacramento, CA 94244-2120

GENERAL INFORMATION PACKAGE

Section |. TYPE OF ASSISTANCE REQUESTED S
PLANNING CONSTRUCTION
Estimated Amount of Financial Assistance Requested: $ 500,000
Project Tite: CSA 39AB Request for Additional Connections
Section ll. APPLICANT INFORMATION
Water System Number: 1000471
Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) Number: 078613009
Applicant (Entity) Name: County of Fresno
Street Address: 2220 Tulare Street City: Fresno
State: CA Zip+4 Code: 93721-2127
Mailing Address: 2220 Tulare St, 6th Floor | City: Fresno
State: CA Zip+4 Code: 93721-2127
Congressional District(s): 16
State Senate District(s): 12
State Assembly District(s): 31
County: Fresno Federal Tax Identification Number: 94-6000512
(MANDATORY)
Authorized Representative Name, Title: Steven E. White, Director - Dept of Public Works and Planning
Phone Number: (559 )600-4500 Email Address: Stwhlte@fresnocountvcaqov
. (MANDATORY) o
Primary Contact Person Name: Amina Flores-Becker, Resources Division Manager
Phone Number: (559 )600-4259 Email Address: gfloresbecker@fresnocountyca.gov
(OPTIONAL)
Project Engineer and License Number:
Phone Number: ( ) Email Address:
(OPTIONAL)
Environmental Contact Person Name:
Phone Number: ( ) Email Address:
~ (MANDATORY)
Local Counsel Name: Peter Wall, Senior Deputy County Counsel
Phone Number: (559 )600-3479 Email Address: pwall@fresnocountyca.gov
(OPTIONAL)
Davis-Bacon Contact Person Name: Jennifer Parks
Phone Number: (559 )600-4546 Email Address: iparks@fresnocountyca.gov
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Section lll. PROJECT INFORMATION AND PROPOSED SCHEDULES (All fields mandatory)

LGTS
(State Only)

1. Project Description: (Enter a brief description of the problem and project)

A number of private well households located in the vicinity of CSA39's service area are interested in connecting to the public water
system. Nitrate levels in excess of the MCL have been found in the well water of the majority of interested households, and dropping
groundwater levels have left private well owners unable to access groundwater. To hydraulically supply water to the additional homes,
new mains are needed.

The project area includes 20 residential connections and 1 institutional connection (a church), all interested parties experience water
contamination issues and/or failing private wells. 4 of the 20 interested households and the institutional connection (a church) have had
dry wells in the past and others have had to dig deeper to access groundwater.14 of the 20 homes sampled exceed Nitrate MCL levels.

2. s this project related to a compliance order or a violation? Yes >< No

If yes, Explain:
N/A

3. Attach a copy of the system’s water supply permit, along with any active enforcement orders
(label as Attachment G1)

4. Current year estimated population served by the water system: 395

e Current population of the area benefitting from the project: 66

Briefly describe how the population was determined:

- 395 was taken from the California Drinking Water Watch website under Water System Details
- 66 was determined by the completed Median Household Income Surveys of the 20 interested
households and 1 institutional connection (a church that has had a dry well in the past)

5. Total Number of Service Connections: 141 (currently Served)

e Residential Service Connections: 14() (CU rrenﬂy Served)

e Commercial/Industrial Service Connections:

e Other Service Connections: 1 (SChOO| - Currenﬂy Sewed)

Briefly describe how the number of service connections was determined:

The information was taken from the California Drinking Water Watch website under Water
System Details based on County records and field survey information.

6. Estimated Application Schedule:
Estimated or Actual Date

September 2019
September 2019
September 2019
September 2019

a) General Information Package

b) Technical Package

c) Environmental Package

d) Financial Security Package

Financial Assistance Application Page 2 of 6 General Information Package (Planning and Construction)
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7. Consultation with Other Agencies
Please list other Federal and State agencies that have been involved in this project (e.g. planning, CEQA/NEPA
consultation, funding, etc.), their contact information if known, and estimated dates for resolution of any issues.
California Water Boards State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking Water:
Caitlin Juarez Caitlin.Juarez@Waterboards.ca.gov, Jose Robledo
jose.robledo@waterboards.ca.gov 559-447-3396
8. Partnering Agencies
Please list all other agencies that have an interest in this project. Provide contact information if known.
1. Provost & Pritchard - Heather Bashian (consulting engineer) (559) 636-1166
2. City of Fresno - Michael Carbajal michael.carbajal@fresno.gov
3. Fresno County Department of Public Works and Planning - Daniel Vang, Sebastian Artal, Amina Flores
Becker (559) 600-4259
4. Fresno County Board of Supervisors - Brian Pacheco and Marc Benjamin (559) 600-1000
mbenjamin@fresnocountyca.gov
5. California Rural Legal Assistance, Inc. - Mariah C. Thompson (559) 441-8721 ext 320 mthompson@crla.org
Section IV. MANAGERIAL INFORMATION (All fields mandatory) eI
State Only
1. Classification of Water System
Community
Non-transient non-community
Transient non-community
|:| Not currently classified as a public water system — Please explain:
2. Indicate the Ownership of the Water System (check all that apply):
» Please include the ownership documentation (See instructions for further information)
(label as Attachment G2)
Public Ownership Private Ownership
D Municipality E Corporation
County Agency Limited Liability Company
[ ] Special District E Partnership
[ ] State Agency Sole Proprietorship
K-12 Public School Non-profit organization
Other: Other:
» [f the water system is privately-owned, indicate the name and title of the individual with authority to
engage the water system in a DWSREF financing agreement.
See Formation Documents Attachment G2
Financial Assistance Application Page 3 of 6 General Information Package (Planning and Construction)
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3. If the Water System is a Municipality, is the Water System a Charter City? Yes / No

4. If the Water System is a Corporation, Limited Liability Company, or Partnership, complete the
following:

A. California Secretary of State Entity Number: N/A

B. Status with California Secretary of State: Active Suspended

Forfeited Dissolved

5. Is the Water System regulated by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC)? Yes / No

If yes, the Water System must obtain CPUC approval. Attach a list and a description of all matter(s) relating
to your Water System that are currently pending before the CPUC (label as Attachment G3).

N/A

6. List the names, titles and duties of key officers. If there are more than 3, attach an organization chart
providing this information (label as Attachment G4).

Attachment G4

7. lIs there any litigation pending relative to the operation of the water system or the proposed project?
Yes / No
If yes, attach a description of the litigation and the potential costs (label as Attachment G5).

N/A

8. Is the Water System leasing land or major water system facilities? Yes / No

If yes, describe the terms of the lease or attach a copy of the lease agreement (label as Attachment G6).
(NOTE: If the lease is critical to the location or operation of the proposed project facilities, the term of the
lease must be equal to or greater than the loan repayment period.)

N/A
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9. Please include a general map of the service area/boundaries (label as Attachment G7):

10. [For Construction Projects Only] Does the Water System have a contract w

th a private firm or

another agency for the operation of the facility to be financed? Yes

v

No

If yes, provide the name of the firm or agency and term (in years) of the agreement and attach a copy of the

agreement (label as Attachment G8)
N/A this is a Planning Project

CERTIFICATION AND SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that | am authorized to submit this application; the information
provided in this application is true and correct; the documentation has been duly authorized by the governing
body of the applicant; and the entity possesses the legal authority to apply for the financing and enter into a
financing agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board and to finance and construct the proposed

facilities.

Name of Authorized Representative: Title:
Signature of Authorized Representative: Date:
ATTACHMENT CHECKLIST

Check the box next to each item attached to your application.

G1 — Water Supply Permit and Enforcement Orders
G2 — Ownership Documentation (if applicable)

G3 — CPUC Documentation (if applicable)

G4 — Organization Chart

G5 — Pending Litigation (if applicable)

G6 — Lease Agreement (if applicable)

G7 — Service Area Map

G8 — Operating Agreement (if applicable)

OO00O8O-”A
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FOR STATE USE ONLY

1. Project Manager:

2. DWSREF Project #:

3. Does the name on the water supply permit match the Secretary of State website (http://kepler.sos.ca.gov/) and
demonstrate an active status? (Does not apply to publicly-owned water systems)

4. Confirm that the FAAST Pin Number is linked to LGTS?

5. Application documents uploaded into LGTS?

YES

6. Spending forecast in LGTS - Spending forecast is set as:

7. Project Category: A B C

D

E

If manual, is it updated?

F

NOTES/COMMENTS (Attach additional sheets as needed):

SECTION |

SECTION I

SECTION llI

SECTION IV

YES[ NO [ |WA (if No, notify the District Office/LPA)

YES

Manual Automatic

YES

Attach median household income determination and any related documents.

Comments:

N/A

Project Manager Signature

Senior Engineer Signature

Date

Date

Financial Assistance Application
(REV. 07/2016)
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COUNTY OF FRESNO
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FRESNO, CALIFOANIA

BEFORE THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
OF THE COUNTY OF FRESNO
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
IN THE MATTER OF )

COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39) RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FORMATION OF
WITH ZONES ™A™ AND "B" ) A COUNTY SERVICE AREA WITH ZONES OF BENEFIT

WHEREAS, an application to form County Service Area No. 39
was presented to and considered by the Local Agency Formation Commission
of the County of Fresnol(LAFCU) in the manner provided by law; and

WHEREAS, LAFCO on the 26th day of October, 1989, adopted its
resolution to approve a proposal with conditions to add water service to
County Service Area No. 39 consisting of Zones "A"™ (Beran Way) and "8"
(Prospect/Grove Avenues), an area lying southwest of the City of Fresno;
and |

WHEREAS, the extended service to be provided by said service
area is limited to the operation and meintenance of a community water
distribution system; and '

WHEREAS, Fresno County has received conditional approval of a
$826,600 grant from the Farmer's Home Administration and a $800,Dod grant
under the California Safe Drinking Water Bond Law of 1986 from the State
of California Department of Water Resources to construct said water
distribution system and to connect it to the City of Fresno's municipal
water system; and

WHEREAS, the County Service area law authorizes this Board to
add services after approval of the request by LAFCO; and

WHEREAS, this Board on the 23td day of April, 1991, adopted a

resolution of intention to form County Service Area No. 39 with Zones of

/1



Benefit "A"™ and "B" as shown on and described in Exhibits "A," "B," and
ncn which are attached hereto and incorporated herein; and

WHEREAS, said resolution of intention sets the 1llth day of
June, 1991, at 2 p.m. in the meeting room of the Board of Supervisors of
the County of Fresno as the time and place for a public hearing to
consider formation of County Service Area No. 39 with Zones of Benefit

mA" and "B"; and

m ~N O B W N

WHEREAS, notice of sald hearing was duly published in a

0

newspaper of general circulation in the County of Fresno as reguired by

10 law; and

11 WHEREAS, at said hearing, no written protests were filed.
12 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows:

13 1. A County Service Area is approved and formed under the
14 terms of the County Service Area Law in the unincorporated area of the
15 County. The exterior boundaries of the County Service Area are shown on

16 the attached map described as Exhibit "A" and further described in
17 Exhibits "B" and "C" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
18 2. The name of the proposed service area shall be "County

19 Service Area No. 39."

20 3, The extended service to be provided by County Service
21 Area No. 39 shall be limited to the maintenance and operation of a

22 community water distribution system connected to the City of Fresno's
23 municipal water system. Any authorization for additional services shall

24 be effective only upon the approval of the LAFCO and this Board.
25 4, Except where funds are otherwise available from service

26 charges collected pursuant to Section 25210.77(a) of the Government Code,

27 /7]
28 11/
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1 a charge sufficient to pay for such extended services will be levied upon

2 taxable property within such area.

3 5. The resclution of LAFCO approving the formation of the

4 County Service Area with extension of service made its approval

5 conditional upon the following:

6 a. The service authorized by formation shall be

7 adninistration, operation, and maintenance of a community water

8 distribution system connected to the City of Fresno's municipal water

9 system.
10 b. Formation shall not be completed until:
11 (1) Approval by the appropriate Federal and State
12 agencies of applications to fund that portion of the water system not
13 funded by improvement district or revenue bonds.
14 _ (2) Formation of Improvement Disfricts No. 261 and
15 No. 262; or approval of water revenue bonds for water system improvements.
16 THE FOREGOING was passed and adopted by the following vote of the

17 Board of Supervisors of the County of Fresno this 1lth day of June, 1991,
18 to-wit:

19 AYES: Supervisors Vagim, Levy, Conrad, Koligian
20 NOES: None

21 ABSENT: None

22 VACANT: 5th Supervisorial District

23

g e Sy

CHATRMAN, Board of Sufervisors

D, Clerk

26 Boayd/of Superv1sor ]
022 v/

27| By //2/ CC ~ ; 7 “ s File #10248
Deputgy Agenda #12

28 SD cn/bs
Resolution #91-356
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EXHIBIT "B"

COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
ZONE A
(Beran Tract No. 1)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

That portion of northeast quarter and southeast quarter of Section 25,
Township 14 South, Range 19 East, Mount Diablo Base and Meridian, described
as follows:

Beginning at the northwest corner of the southeast quarter of said Section
25; thence,

(1)  Southerly, along the west line of said southeast quarter, to the
westerly extension of the south line of Lot 8 in the southeast quarter
of Section 25 of Bank of California Tract, according to the map
thereof, recorded November 14, 1883 in Book 2, page 14 of Plats,
Fresno County Records; thence,

(2) Easterly, along said extension and along said south line of said Lot 8
to the southeast corner of said Lot 8 thence,

(3) Easterly, along the south line of Lot 1 in the southeast quarter of
Section 25 of said tract, to the southeast corner of the west 5 feet
of said Lot 1; thence,

(4> Northerly, aleng the east line of said west 5 feet, 169 feet to the
north line of the south 169 feet of said Lot 1: thence,

(5) Easterly, along the north line of said south 169 feet, 15 feet to the
east line of the west 20 feet of said Lot 1; thence,

(6) Northerly, along said east line of the west 20 feet, to the north line
of said southeast quarter of said Section 25: thence,

(7}  Easterly, along said north line of said southeast quarter, to the
southeast corner of the northeast quarter of said Section 25, thence,

(8) Northerly, along the east line of said Section 25, to the easterly
extension of the north Tine of Lot 4 in the northeast quarter of said
Section 25 of Bank of California Tract; thence,

(9) Hesterly, along said easterly extension and the north line of said
Lot 4, to the northwest corner of said Lot 4 in the northeast quarter
of said Section 25; thence,

(10) Southerly, along the west line of said Lot 4 and the southerly
extension thereof, to the south line of said northeast quarter of said
Section 25; thence,

(11) Mesterly, along said south line, to the point of beginning.

Containing an area 42.456 acres, more or less.

2410e-44
1/8/91



EXHIBIT *C"
COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
ZONE B
(Beran Tract No. 2)
LEGAL DESCRIPTION
The west 890 feet of the southeast quarter of Section 13, Township 14 South,
Range 19 East, Mount Diablo Base and Meridian, described as follows:

Beginning at the northwest corner of the southeast quarter of the said
Section 13; thence,

1. N 89° 34' E, along the north 1ine of saild southeast quarter of said
section 13, to the northeast corner of said west 890 feet; thence,

2. South, along the east line of said west 890 feet, a distance of 2642
feet to the south line of said section 13; thence,

3. S 89° 32' W, along said south line, 890 feet to the southwest corner of
said southeast quarter; thence,

4. North, along the west line of said southeast quarter, 2642.25 feet to
the point of beginning.

Contzining an area of 53.985 acres, more or less.

2410e-44
1/8/91
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
Division of Financial Assistance

P. O. Box 944212, Sacramento, CA 94244-2120

FINANCIAL SECURITY PACKAGE (PLANNING)

Applicant (Entity) Name: County of Fresno

Project Title: CSA 39AB Request for Additional Connections

Contact Person: Amina Flores-Becker Phone: () 959-600-4259

1. Amount of Assistance Requested: $ 500,000

2. Planning has a term of 5 years.

3. Other Project Funding Sources

Name and Type of Funding Sources Amount Applied Approved Received
No other funding identified. $ |:| |:| |:|
$ [ ] [ ] [ ]
$ [ ] [ ] [ ]

4. Current Year Median Household Income: $ 28,000 per MHI Survey conducted in 2018

5a. Current Year Estimated 395 5b. Check box if less than 50% of
Population Served: residences are permanently occupied [ ]
6. Active Service Connections [ ] Not Applicable
Current Monthly Service Average Monthly Billing
Connection Type Number of Connections Charge (Last 12 months)
Residential 140 $64.60 $19,127.57
Commercial 1 $6460 $21 1.81
Industrial $ $
Other $ $
TOTAL $ $

Rate increase effective date for projected monthly service charges:

7. Projected Annual Operations and Maintenance Costs, $ 1 29 429
Including amortized replacement costs (upon completion): )

8. Discussion of Material Events, Material Obligation Conditions, and Any Debt Limit

Identify any current prior material events such as bankruptcy, defaults, litigation, grand jury findings, unscheduled draws on reserve
funds, substitution of insurers or their failure to perform, unscheduled draws on credit enhancements, actions taken in anticipation of
filing Chapter 9, rating changes, relevant conditions in material obligations, and any local debt limit.

N/A

Financial Assistance Application Page 1 of 7 Financial Security Package (Planning)
(Rev. 9/2017) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund



9. Water Rate Study

Has a water rate study been conducted for the water system? [ | Yes No

If yes, please submit a complete copy of the Water Rate Study.

N/A

ATTACHMENTS (Check the box next to each item attached to your application.)

F1 — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (3 years)

F5a — AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE (required for publicly owned
entities)

F5b — CORPORATE RESOLUTION TO APPLY, BORROW AND TO GRANT
SECURITY (required for corporations)

]

]

F6 — RATE ADOPTION RESOLUTION

F10 — NEW SPECIAL TAX, ASSESSMENT DISTRICT, OR SERVICE CHARGE
PROJECTIONS (if applicable)

F11 — RELEVANT SERVICE, MANAGEMENT, CONSOLIDATION, OPERATING, OR
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS (if applicable)

O

]  F12- FUTURE CAPITAL NEEDS (if applicable)

The following attachments are not required for Small DAC/SDAC applying for 100% grant
or principal forgiveness funding. If a loan determination applies, applicant must submit
all attachments.

(] F2- BUDGETS OR PROJECTIONS (2 years)

[] F7 — PLEDGED REVENUES AND FUND(S) RESOLUTION
] F8 — RELATED DEBT OR NO DEBT LETTER
(see Application Information & Instructions)
[ ] F9 — DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY
State Use Only
DWSREF Project #
Project Manager
Date Received
Financial Assistance Application Page 2 of 7 Financial Security Package (Planning)
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2016
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BROWN ARMSTRONG

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Fresno

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type
activities of the County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the
County of Fresno, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the CSA’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA'’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the CSA, as of June 30, 2016, and the
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the CSA, and do not purport to, and do not,
present fairly the financial position of the County of Fresno, California, as of June 30, 2016, the changes
in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31,
2017, on our consideration of the CSA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California
January 31, 2017



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and investments $ 26,710
Receivables
Accounts 21,979
Interest 91
Total Current Assets 48,780

Capital assets, net -

Total Assets 48,780

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 8,763

Due to primary government 3,296
Total Liabilities 12,059
NET POSITION

Unrestricted 36,721
Total Net Position $ 36,721

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

Total Operating Revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES
Insurance
Professional services
Specialized departmental expenses
General and administrative
Repairs and maintenance
Utilities
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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96,229

96,229

1,092
39,677
898
4,610
4,633
45,221

96,131

98

680

680

778

35,943

$

36,721



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from users $
Cash paid to suppliers

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on investments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net change in cash and investments
Cash and Investments, Beginning of Year

Cash and Investments, End of Year $

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) $
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Accounts payable
Due to primary government

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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96,535

(90,673)

5,862

672
672

6,534

20,176

26,710

98

306
5,102
356

5,862



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements present only County Service Area No. 39 and are not
intended to present fairly the financial position, changes in financial position, or cash flows of
the County of Fresno, California in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Reporting Entity: County Service Area No. 39, a special district (the District), is an enterprise
fund of the County of Fresno (the County), which is a political subdivision of the State of
California. The District was formed to provide domestic water service to two residential
subdivisions west of the incorporated City of Fresno, near Valentine and Jensen Avenues. The
District constructed a pipeline that continues to transfer water, purchased from the City of
Fresno, to the residents of the District.

The District follows the standards promulgated by GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, to define
the reporting entity. The financial statements include all operations over which the District is
financially accountable. Under these criteria the District is considered a component unit of the
County of Fresno and is reported in the County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR).

The District was formed in 1990 under the provisions of Government Code Section 25210.1
et. seq., and is governed by the County Board of Supervisors. The District is not subject to
federal or state income taxes.

The District itself does not employ any personnel. The Department of Public Works and
Planning staff provides the necessary services such as maintenance and accounting to the
District on a reimbursement basis.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation:

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector
guidance for their enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The District has elected
not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

The District is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its activities for
financial statement purposes. Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of
Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a
Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund and non-major funds aggregated.

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that
the cost and expenses of providing goods or services to its customers be financed or recovered
primarily through users charges; or where the governing body has decided that periodic
determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued):

Enterprise funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or
noncurrent) are included in the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period
in which the liability is incurred. Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those
revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are
reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are
essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-
operating expenses.

Cash and Investments: The District maintains its cash account with the County of Fresno
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool. The County of Fresno is
restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest in time
deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State
Treasurer’s investment pool, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates
of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.

State statutes and the County of Fresno’s investment policy authorize the County Treasurer
to invest in U.S. Government Treasury and Agency Securities, bankers’ acceptances,
commercial paper, corporate bonds and notes, repurchase agreements, and the State
Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). In accordance with GASB Statement No.
31, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment
Pools,” investments held by the County Treasurer are stated at fair value. The fair value of
pooled investments is determined quarterly and is based on current market prices received
from the securities custodian. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer.

Credit quality ratings are not available for the District’s investments as all cash is invested as
part of the common investment pool of the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer.
Cash in the County Treasury is considered unclassified as to credit risk because it is not
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The District does not have
any deposits with financial institutions as of June 30, 2016.

The District’s cash and investments for Statement of Cash Flows purposes are considered to
be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash, and investments held by the County of
Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool.

Accounts Receivable: The “direct write-off” method for accounts receivable was applied for
accounts that had been established as uncollectible. A deduction of revenue is recognized
when an account is referred to the Revenue Reimbursement Division of the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector and a Discharge of Accountability is received. The “direct
write-off” method is not in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles. Any
write-offs would be deemed immaterial to the financial statements as a whole. The District
wrote off $0 during the year ending June 30, 2016.




COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital Assets: Capital assets acquired are recorded at cost or estimated cost where cost is
not available. Donated or contributed capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value on
the date received. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Improvements are
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as
applicable. Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straight-line method applied
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Building and Improvements: 25 Years

Accounts Payable and Due to Primary Government: Certain costs are incurred by the District
during the current reporting period but are not paid until after the beginning of the next fiscal
period. These costs are reported as payables in the financial statements. The District’s current
accounts payable and due to primary government balances of $8,763 and $3,296,
respectively, as of June 30, 2016, are related to certain contract services and payments for
utility fees.

Net Position: Net position represents the residual interest in the District’'s assets after
liabilities are deducted. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, the fund equity section
on the Statement of Net Position was combined to report total net position and present it in
three broad components:

e Net investment in capital assets - Amount consists of capital assets, including
infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of
debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

e Restricted - Amount consists of net position restricted by external creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabled legislature.

e Unrestricted - Amount consists of all net position that does not meet the definition
“net investment in capital assets” or “restricted” net position.

When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted resources are
depleted first before unrestricted resources are used.

Property Taxes: The District receives monies for service-type property assessments, which
are levied on the properties within the area. Assessments for fees and services are based on
the benefit derived by each parcel within the District.

County of Fresno is responsible for the assessment, collection, and apportionment of property
taxes for all jurisdictions including the school districts and special districts within the County.
The Board levies property taxes on September 1, on property values certified on July 1.
Secured property tax payments are due in two equal installments. The first is generally due
November 1 and delinquent with penalties after December 39, and the second is generally
due on February 1 and delinquent with penalties after April 39. Secured property taxes
become a lien on the property on January 1. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due
upon receipt of the tax bill and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property Taxes (continued): All jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority
from the State Constitution and various legislative provisions contained in the State
Government Codes and Revenue and Taxation Codes. Pursuant to Article CIIIA (known as
Proposition 13) of the State of California Constitution, the County is permitted to levy a
maximum tax of 1 percent of full cash value.

Teeter Plan — County of Fresno elected the alternative property tax treatment (Teeter Plan)
effective July 1, 1993, whereby the County purchases the current secured unpaid taxes
remaining at year-end from participating agencies. In return, the County records taxes
receivable and receives the delinquent penalties and redemption interest accruing on
delinquent collections related to participating agencies. The participating agencies, including
school districts and special districts, in turn, receive their full tax distribution with no liability
for uncollected taxes to the County. Therefore, for participating agencies, revenue is
measurable and available and is recorded in the period the payment of current secured unpaid
taxes is received. The District is a participant of the Teeter Plan.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Governmental Accounting Standards Update: During the year ending June 30, 2016, the
District implemented the following standards with no financial impact on the financial
statements:

GASB Statement No. 72 - Fair Value Measurement and Application. The provisions of this
statement are effective for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2015.

GASB Statement No. 73 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension and Related Assets
That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement No. 68, and Amendments to Certain
Provisions of GASB Statements No. 67 and No. 68. The provisions of this statement are
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015, except those provisions that address
employers and governmental nonemployer contributing entities for pensions that are not
within the scope of GASB Statement No. 68, which are effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2016.

GASB Statement No. 76 — The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State
and Local Governments. The provisions of this statement are effective for financial
statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2015.

GASB Statement No. 79 - Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants. The
requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2015, except for the provisions in paragraphs 18, 19, 23-26 and 40, which are effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Governmental Accounting Standards Update (continued):

Released GASB Statements to be implemented in future financial statements are as follows:

GASB Statement No. 74 - Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than
Pension Plans. The provisions of this statement are effective for financial statements for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016.

GASB Statement No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
other than Pension Plans. The provisions of this statement are effective for financial
statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 77 — Tax Abatement Disclosures. The requirements of this statement
are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015.

GASB Statement No. 78 - Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined
Benefit Plans. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2015.

GASB Statement No. 80 - Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units- an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14. The requirements of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016.

GASB Statement No. 81 - Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016.

GASB Statement No. 82 - Pension Issues- an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No.
68, and No. 73. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of paragraph 7 in a circumstance
in which an employer’s pension liability is measured as of a date other than the employer’s
most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements of paragraph 7 are
effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the
pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 83 - Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018, early adoption is
encouraged.

Subsequent Events: In compliance with accounting standards, management has evaluated
events that have occurred after year-end to determine if these events are required to be
disclosed in the financial statements. Management has determined that no events require
disclosure in accordance with accounting standards. These subsequent events have been
evaluated through January 31, 2017, which is the date the financial statements were available
to be issued.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments $ 26,710

Total cash and investments $ 26,710

Summary of Deposits:

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016 consist of the following:

Deposits with County of Fresno Treasurer $ 26,710

Total cash and investments $ 26,710

See the County of Fresno Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for disclosures related to
risks and fair value measurements.

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 is as follows:

Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance
Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and improvements $ 1,115,384 $ - $ - $ 1,115,384
Total capital assets
being depreciated: 1,115,384 - - 1,115,384

Less accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements (1,115,384)
Total accumulated depreciation: (1,115,384)

(1,115,384)
(1,115,384)

Capital assets, net $ - $ - $ - $ -

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2016, was $0.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 4 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
District provides coverage for these losses through commercial insurance policies and/or
through participation in the County of Fresno’s Self-Insurance Program. Refer to the County
of Fresno CAFR for additional information.

NOTE 5 —- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments and contingencies, undeterminable in amount, include normal recurring
pending claims and litigation. In the opinion of management, based upon discussion with legal

counsel, there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the
financial position of the District.
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BROWN ARMSTRONG

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Fresno

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the
County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the County of Fresno, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2017.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
CSA'’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
CSA'’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify certain
deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs, that we consider to be significant deficiencies: 2016-001 and
2016-002.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the CSA'’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instance of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The CSA’s Response to the Findings

The CSA’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. The CSA’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California
January 31, 2017



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Finding 2016-001 - Financial Reporting
Criteria:

The County should design and implement internal controls over the financial reporting process to
ensure the following: 1) that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure the
proper application of fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is closed and
related financial statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner allowing for a
more efficient audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to sufficient management
review so that balances are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP).

Condition:

During our fieldwork, we noted that the County did not have sufficient year-end closing procedures
in place which would have allowed the financial statements to be issued in a timely manner. We
noted that the closing procedures currently in place did not include a sufficient review of the
information before it was provided to the external auditors. Based upon our audit we noted there
were several post-close adjustments missed by the County. Adjustments made by management
considered to be material to the financial statement were related to beginning fund balance/net
assets for prior period adjustments, accounts payable, accounts receivable, notes receivable,
deferred revenue, capital assets, long term debt, and revenue and expenditure/expense accounts.
Also, during our testing of year-end cutoff procedures and over financial statements account
balances we proposed audit adjustments to properly state the year-end account balances of certain
accounts in accordance with GAAP. All adjustments that were proposed during the current year
audit were presented to management and subsequently posted to the financial statements.

Cause of Condition:

Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial reporting
process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient management
supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending account balances.

Effect of Condition:

Untimely closing and lack of account balances resulted in extended fieldwork for the audits of the
CSAs and Districts. In addition material adjustments were proposed and posted to the financial
statements of the affected CSAs and Districts for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Department implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure that a
comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner, and that sufficient
resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the year-end closing procedures and
preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules. We also recommend that the
Department strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that all transactions related to
the fiscal year are properly captured and recorded in the general ledger to ensure the accuracy
and completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we recommend the Department invest in
training and cross-training programs for those employees with financial reporting responsibilities.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Finding 2016-001 - Financial Reporting (continued)

Managements Response:

Management concurs with the finding and recommendation. Year-end procedures will be modified
to ensure timely closing of general ledger. Checklists will be created to ensure all information
needed to compile financial statements and prepare supporting schedules is available and
complete. To the extent resources are available, the Department will provide training to employees
with financial reporting responsibilities.

Finding 2016-002 - Depreciation Calculations

Criteria

In accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards, internal controls should be designed to
provide reasonable assurance of achieving effective and efficient operations over financial
reporting.

Condition

During our audit, we noted discrepancies when recalculating depreciation expense. Upon further
research and inquiry with County personnel, it was apparent there were mistakes due to data entry

errors among other things.

Cause of Condition

Lack of review procedures over data entry into the system of the County’s Department of Public
Works and Planning

Effect of Condition

Depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation could be misstated which would ultimately
affect the presented amounts of depreciable capital assets.

Recommendation

We recommend the Department implement review procedures to ensure properly data entry of
capital asset information into its system. We further recommend the Department go back through
its current depreciation calculations and correct and update its system accordingly.

Management Response and Corrective Action Plan

Management concurs with the finding and recommendation. Prior to fiscal year end, staff will
review depreciation reports along with depreciation entered in the PeopleSoft financial system to
ensure depreciation calculations are accurate.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Finding 2015-001 - Financial Reporting
Criteria:

The County should design and implement internal controls over the financial reporting process to
ensure the following: 1) that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure the
proper application of fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is closed and
related financial statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner allowing for a
more efficient audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to sufficient management
review so that balances are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP).

Condition:

During our fieldwork, we noted that the County did not have year-end closing procedures in place
which would have allowed the financial statements to be issued in a timely manner. We noted
that the closing procedures currently in place did not include a sufficient review of the information
before it was provided to the external auditors. Based upon our audit we noted there were several
post-close adjustments missed by the County. Adjustments made by management considered to
be material to the financial statement were related to beginning fund balance/net assets for prior
period adjustments, accounts payable, accounts receivable, notes receivable, deferred revenue,
capital assets, long term debt, and revenue and expenditure/expense accounts. Also, during our
testing of year-end cutoff procedures and over financial statements account balances we proposed
audit adjustments to properly state the year-end account balances of certain accounts in
accordance with GAAP. All adjustments that were proposed during the current year audit were
presented to management and subsequently posted to the financial statements.

Cause of Condition:

Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial reporting
process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient management
supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending account balances in
accordance with GAAP.

Effect of Condition:

Untimely closing and lack of account balances presented in accordance with GAAP resulted in final
fieldwork for the audit of the CSA’s being postponed. As a result, material adjustments were
proposed and posted to the CSA'’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the County implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure that a
comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner and that sufficient
resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the CSA’s year-end closing procedures
and preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules. We also recommend that the
CSA strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that all transactions related to the fiscal
year are properly captured and recorded in the general ledger to ensure the accuracy and
completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we recommend the CSA invest in training and
cross-training programs for those employees with financial reporting responsibilities.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Finding 2015-001 - Financial Reporting (continued)

Managements Response:

Management concurs with finding and recommendation. The County’s Department of Public Works
and Planning will review its year-end policies and procedures to ensure timely closing of the general
ledger and to ensure all transactions are properly captured and recorded.

Current Year Status

Not implemented, see current year finding number 2016-001.
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LJINA_/ VY 1IN MAIANIY IO LI/ N

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Fresno

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type
activities of the County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the
County of Fresno, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the CSA’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the CSA, as of June 30, 2017, and the
respective changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the CSA, and do not purport to, and do not,
present fairly the financial position of the County of Fresno, California, as of June 30, 2017, the changes
in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31,
2018, on our consideration of the CSA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California
January 31, 2018



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2017

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and investments $ 29,310
Receivables
Accounts 19,500
Interest 103
Total Current Assets 48,913

Capital assets, net -

Total Assets 48,913
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 12,025
Due to primary government 2,913
Total Liabilities 14,938

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 33,975

Total Net Position $ 33,975

See Independent Auditor’s Report and the accompanying notes.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services $ 102,435
Total Operating Revenues 102,435
OPERATING EXPENSES
Insurance 990
Professional services 37,656
General and administrative 3,815
Repairs and maintenance 11,385
Utilities 51,426
Total Operating Expenses 105,272
Operating Income (Loss) (2,837)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings 91
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 91
Change in Net Position (2,746)
Net Position, Beginning of Year 36,721
Net Position, End of Year $ 33,975

See Independent Auditor’s Report and the accompanying notes.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash received from users $ 104,914
Cash paid to suppliers (102,393)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,521

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest on investments 79
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 79
Net change in cash and investments 2,600

Cash and Investments, Beginning of Year 26,710
Cash and Investments, End of Year $ 29,310

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) $ (2,837)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 2,479
Accounts payable 3,262
Due to primary government (383)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 2,521

See Independent Auditor’s Report and the accompanying notes.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements present only County Service Area No. 39 and are not
intended to present fairly the financial position, changes in financial position, or cash flows of
the County of Fresno, California in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Reporting Entity: County Service Area No. 39, a special district (the District), is an enterprise
fund of the County of Fresno (the County), which is a political subdivision of the State of
California. The District was formed to provide domestic water service to two residential
subdivisions west of the incorporated City of Fresno, near Valentine and Jensen Avenues. The
District constructed a pipeline that continues to transfer water, purchased from the City of
Fresno, to the residents of the District.

The District follows the standards promulgated by GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, to define
the reporting entity. The financial statements include all operations over which the District is
financially accountable. Under these criteria the District is considered a component unit of the
County of Fresno and is reported in the County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR).

The District was formed in 1990 under the provisions of Government Code Section 25210.1
et. seq., and is governed by the County Board of Supervisors. The District is not subject to
federal or state income taxes.

The District itself does not employ any personnel. The Department of Public Works and
Planning staff provides the necessary services such as maintenance and accounting to the
District on a reimbursement basis.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation:

The District is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its activities for
financial statement purposes. Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of
Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a
Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund and non-major funds aggregated.

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that
the cost and expenses of providing goods or services to its customers be financed or recovered
primarily through users charges; or where the governing body has decided that periodic
determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued):

Enterprise funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or
noncurrent) are included in the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period
in which the liability is incurred. Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those
revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are
reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are
essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-
operating expenses.

Cash and Investments: The District maintains its cash account with the County of Fresno
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool. The County of Fresno is
restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest in time
deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State
Treasurer’s investment pool, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates
of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.

State statutes and the County of Fresno’s investment policy authorize the County Treasurer
to invest in U.S. Government Treasury and Agency Securities, bankers’ acceptances,
commercial paper, corporate bonds and notes, repurchase agreements, and the State
Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). In accordance with GASB Statement No.
31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment
Pools, investments held by the County Treasurer are stated at fair value. The fair value of
pooled investments is determined quarterly and is based on current market prices received
from the securities custodian. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer.

Credit quality ratings are not available for the District’s investments as all cash is invested as
part of the common investment pool of the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer.
Cash in the County Treasury is considered unclassified as to credit risk because it is not
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The District does not have
any deposits with financial institutions as of June 30, 2017.

The District’s cash and investments for Statement of Cash Flows purposes are considered to
be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash, and investments held by the County of
Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool.

Accounts Receivable: The “direct write-off” method for accounts receivable was applied for
accounts that had been established as uncollectible. A deduction of revenue is recognized
when an account is referred to the Revenue Reimbursement Division of the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector and a Discharge of Accountability is received. The “direct
write-off” method is not in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles. Any
write-offs would be deemed immaterial to the financial statements as a whole. The District
wrote off $0 during the year ending June 30, 2017.




COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital Assets: Capital assets acquired are recorded at cost or estimated cost where cost is
not available. Donated or contributed capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value on
the date received. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Improvements are
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as
applicable. Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straight-line method applied
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Building and improvements: 25 Years

Accounts Payable and Due to Primary Government: Certain costs are incurred by the District
during the current reporting period but are not paid until after the beginning of the next fiscal
period. These costs are reported as payables in the financial statements. The District’s current
accounts payable and due to primary government balances of $12,025 and $2,913,
respectively, as of June 30, 2017, are related to certain contract services and payments for
utility fees.

Net Position: Net position represents the residual interest in the District’'s assets after
liabilities are deducted. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, the fund equity section
on the Statement of Net Position was combined to report total net position and present it in
three broad components:

e Net investment in capital assets — Amount consists of capital assets, including
infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of
debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

e Restricted - Amount consists of net position restricted by external creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabled legislature.

e Unrestricted — Amount consists of all net position that does not meet the definition
“net investment in capital assets” or “restricted” net position.

When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted resources are
depleted first before unrestricted resources are used.

Property Taxes: The District receives monies for service-type property assessments, which
are levied on the properties within the area. Assessments for fees and services are based on
the benefit derived by each parcel within the District.

County of Fresno is responsible for the assessment, collection, and apportionment of property
taxes for all jurisdictions including the school districts and special districts within the County.
The Board levies property taxes on September 1, on property values certified on July 1.
Secured property tax payments are due in two equal installments. The first is generally due
November 1 and delinquent with penalties after December 10, and the second is generally
due on February 1 and delinquent with penalties after April 10. Secured property taxes
become a lien on the property on January 1. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due
upon receipt of the tax bill and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property Taxes (continued): All jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority
from the State Constitution and various legislative provisions contained in the State
Government Codes and Revenue and Taxation Codes. Pursuant to Article CIIIA (known as
Proposition 13) of the State of California Constitution, the County is permitted to levy a
maximum tax of 1 percent of full cash value.

Teeter Plan — County of Fresno elected the alternative property tax treatment (Teeter Plan)
effective July 1, 1993, whereby the County purchases the current secured unpaid taxes
remaining at year-end from participating agencies. In return, the County records taxes
receivable and receives the delinquent penalties and redemption interest accruing on
delinquent collections related to participating agencies. The participating agencies, including
school districts and special districts, in turn, receive their full tax distribution with no liability
for uncollected taxes to the County. Therefore, for participating agencies, revenue is
measurable and available and is recorded in the period the payment of current secured unpaid
taxes is received. The District is a participant of the Teeter Plan.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Governmental Accounting Standards Update: During the year ending June 30, 2017, the
District implemented the following standards with no financial impact on the financial
statements:

GASB Statement No. 74 — Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than
Pension Plans. The provisions of this statement are effective for financial statements for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016.

GASB Statement No. 77 — Tax Abatement Disclosures. The requirements of this statement
are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015.

GASB Statement No. 78 - Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined
Benefit Plans. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2015.

GASB Statement No. 80 - Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units- an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14. The requirements of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016.

GASB Statement No. 81 - Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016.

Released GASB Statements to be implemented in future financial statements are as follows:
GASB Statement No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits

other than Pension Plans. The provisions of this statement are effective for financial
statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Governmental Accounting Standards Update (continued):

GASB Statement No. 82 - Pension Issues- an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No.
68, and No. 73. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of paragraph 7 in a circumstance
in which an employer’s pension liability is measured as of a date other than the employer’s
most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements of paragraph 7 are
effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the
pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 83 - Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 84 - Fiduciary Activities. The requirements of this statement are
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 85 - Omnibus 2017. The provisions of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 86 - Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 87 - Leases. The requirements of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.

Subsequent Events: In compliance with accounting standards, management has evaluated
events that have occurred after year-end to determine if these events are required to be
disclosed in the financial statements. Management has determined that no events require
disclosure in accordance with accounting standards. These subsequent events have been
evaluated through January 31, 2018, which is the date the financial statements were available
to be issued.

NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments $ 29,310

Total cash and investments $ 29,310
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Summary of Deposits:

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following:

Deposits with County of Fresno Treasurer $ 29,310

Total cash and investments $ 29,310

See the County of Fresno Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for disclosures related to
risks and fair value measurements.

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows:

Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance
Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and improvements $1,115,384 $ - $ - $1,115,384
Total capital assets
being depreciated: 1,115,384 - - 1,115,384

Less accumulated depreciation:

Building and improvements (1,115,384) - - (1,115,384)
Total accumulated depreciation:  (1,115,384) - - (1,115,384)
Capital assets, net $ - $ - $ - $ -

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2017, was $0.

NOTE 4 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
District provides coverage for these losses through commercial insurance policies and/or
through participation in the County of Fresno’s Self-Insurance Program. Refer to the County
of Fresno CAFR for additional information.

NOTE 5 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments and contingencies, undeterminable in amount, include normal recurring
pending claims and litigation. In the opinion of management, based upon discussion with legal
counsel, there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the
financial position of the District.
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LJINA_/ VY 1IN MAIANIY IO LI/ N

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Fresno

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the
County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the County of Fresno, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
CSA'’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
CSA'’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain
deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs, that we consider to be a significant deficiency: 2017-001.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the CSA'’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The CSA’s Response to the Finding

The CSA'’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. The CSA’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California
January 31, 2018
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Finding 2017-001 - Financial Reporting
Criteria:

The County’s Department of Public Works and Planning (the Department) should design and
implement internal controls over the financial reporting process to ensure the following: 1)
that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure the proper application of
fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is closed and related financial
statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner allowing for a more efficient
audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to sufficient management review
so that balances are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP).

Condition:

During our fieldwork, we noted the Department did not have adequate year-end closing
procedures. The closing procedures currently in place did not include sufficient review of
accrual items before information was provided to the external auditors. The results of our
testing indicated several material post-closing adjustments missed by the Department for 14
out of 34 audited locations (CSAs, Special Districts, and Disposal Sites), of which we proposed
audit adjustments to properly state the year-end account balances in accordance with GAAP.
All adjustments that were proposed during the current year audit were presented to
management and subsequently posted to the financial statements.

Cause of Condition:

Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial
reporting process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient
management supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending
account balances.

Effect of Condition:

Untimely closing and lack of procedures resulted in extended fieldwork for the audits of the
CSAs and Districts. In addition, material adjustments were proposed and posted to the
financial statements of the affected CSAs and Districts for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Department implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure
that a comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner, and that
sufficient resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the year-end closing
procedures and preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules. We also
recommend that the Department strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that
all transactions related to the fiscal year are properly captured and recorded in the general
ledger to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we
recommend the Department invest in training and cross-training programs for those
employees with financial reporting responsibilities.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Finding 2017-001 - Financial Reporting (continued)

Managements Response:

Management concurs with the finding and recommendation. Year-end procedures will be
modified to ensure timely closing of general ledger and should be in line with the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector. Furthermore, Management will closely review all
supporting schedules to ensure they are recorded properly on the Financial Statements before
providing them to the external auditor. If resources are available, the Department will provide
training to employees with financial reporting responsibilities.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Finding 2016-001 - Financial Reporting
Criteria:

The County should design and implement internal controls over the financial reporting process
to ensure the following: 1) that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure
the proper application of fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is
closed and related financial statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner
allowing for a more efficient audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to
sufficient management review so that balances are presented in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Condition:

During our fieldwork, we noted that the County did not have sufficient year-end closing
procedures in place which would have allowed the financial statements to be issued in a timely
manner. We noted that the closing procedures currently in place did not include a sufficient
review of the information before it was provided to the external auditors. Based upon our
audit we noted there were several post-close adjustments missed by the County.
Adjustments made by management considered to be material to the financial statement were
related to beginning fund balance/net assets for prior period adjustments, accounts payable,
accounts receivable, notes receivable, deferred revenue, capital assets, long term debt, and
revenue and expenditure/expense accounts. Also, during our testing of year-end cutoff
procedures and over financial statements account balances we proposed audit adjustments
to properly state the year-end account balances of certain accounts in accordance with GAAP.
All adjustments that were proposed during the current year audit were presented to
management and subsequently posted to the financial statements.

Cause of Condition:

Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial
reporting process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient
management supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending
account balances.

Effect of Condition:

Untimely closing and lack of account balances resulted in extended fieldwork for the audits of
the CSAs and Districts. In addition, material adjustments were proposed and posted to the
financial statements of the affected CSAs and Districts for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Department implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure
that a comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner, and that
sufficient resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the year-end closing
procedures and preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules. We also
recommend that the Department strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that
all transactions related to the fiscal year are properly captured and recorded in the general
ledger to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we
recommend the Department invest in training and cross-training programs for those
employees with financial reporting responsibilities.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Finding 2016-001 - Financial Reporting (continued)

Managements Response:

Management concurs with the finding and recommendation. Year-end procedures will be
modified to ensure timely closing of general ledger. Checklists will be created to ensure all
information needed to compile financial statements and prepare supporting schedules is
available and complete. To the extent resources are available, the Department will provide
training to employees with financial reporting responsibilities.

Current Year Status

Not implemented, see Finding 2017-001.

Finding 2016-002 - Depreciation Calculations

Criteria

In accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards, internal controls should be designed to
provide reasonable assurance of achieving effective and efficient operations over financial
reporting.

Condition

During our audit, we noted discrepancies when recalculating depreciation expense. Upon
further research and inquiry with County personnel, it was apparent there were mistakes due

to data entry errors among other things.

Cause of Condition

Lack of review procedures over data entry into the system of the County’s Department of
Public Works and Planning

Effect of Condition

Depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation could be misstated which would
ultimately affect the presented amounts of depreciable capital assets.

Recommendation

We recommend the Department implement review procedures to ensure properly data entry
of capital asset information into its system. We further recommend the Department go back
through its current depreciation calculations and correct and update its system accordingly.

Management Response and Corrective Action Plan

Management concurs with the finding and recommendation. Prior to fiscal year end, staff will
review depreciation reports along with depreciation entered in the PeopleSoft financial system
to ensure depreciation calculations are accurate.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Finding 2016-002 - Depreciation Calculations (continued)

Current Year Status

Implemented.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Fresno

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type
activities of the County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the
County of Fresno, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the CSA’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the CSA, as of June 30, 2018, and the
respective changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the CSA, and do not purport to, and do not,
present fairly the financial position of the County of Fresno, California, as of June 30, 2018, the changes
in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31,
2019, on our consideration of the CSA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California
January 31, 2019



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and investments $ 25,261
Receivables
Accounts 3,036
Interest 124
Total Current Assets 28,421

Capital assets, net -

Total Assets 28,421

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 15,665

Due to primary government 3,101
Total Liabilities 18,766
NET POSITION

Unrestricted 9,655
Total Net Position $ 9,655

See Independent Auditor’s Report and the accompanying notes.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

Total Operating Revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES

Insurance
Professional services
General and administrative
Repairs and maintenance
Utilities

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings (loss)

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

See Independent Auditor’s Report and the accompanying notes.
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$

89,099

89,099

1,087
40,682
3,619
2,686
65,342

113,416

(24,317)

(3)

(3)

(24,320)

33,975

$

9,655



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from users
Cash paid to suppliers

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on investments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net change in cash and investments
Cash and Investments, Beginning of Year

Cash and Investments, End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Due to primary government

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

See Independent Auditor’s Report and the accompanying notes.
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$ 105,563
(109,588)

(4,025)

(24)

S )

(4,049)
29,310

$ 25,261

$ (24,317)

16,464
3,640
188

$ (4,025)



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements present only County Service Area No. 39 and are not
intended to present fairly the financial position, changes in financial position, or cash flows of
the County of Fresno, California in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Reporting Entity: County Service Area No. 39, a special district (the District), is an enterprise
fund of the County of Fresno (the County), which is a political subdivision of the State of
California. The District was formed to provide domestic water service to two residential
subdivisions west of the incorporated City of Fresno, near Valentine and Jensen Avenues. The
District constructed a pipeline that continues to transfer water, purchased from the City of
Fresno, to the residents of the District.

The District follows the standards promulgated by GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, to define
the reporting entity. The financial statements include all operations over which the District is
financially accountable. Under these criteria the District is considered a component unit of the
County of Fresno and is reported in the County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR).

The District was formed in 1990 under the provisions of Government Code Section 25210.1
et. seq., and is governed by the County Board of Supervisors. The District is not subject to
federal or state income taxes.

The District itself does not employ any personnel. The Department of Public Works and
Planning staff provides the necessary services such as maintenance and accounting to the
District on a reimbursement basis.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation:

The District is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its activities for
financial statement purposes. Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of
Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a
Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund and non-major funds aggregated.

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that
the cost and expenses of providing goods or services to its customers be financed or recovered
primarily through users charges; or where the governing body has decided that periodic
determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued):

Enterprise funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or
noncurrent) are included in the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period
in which the liability is incurred. Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those
revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are
reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are
essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-
operating expenses.

Cash and Investments: The District maintains its cash account with the County of Fresno
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool. The County of Fresno is
restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest in time
deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State
Treasurer’s investment pool, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates
of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.

State statutes and the County of Fresno’s investment policy authorize the County Treasurer
to invest in U.S. Government Treasury and Agency Securities, bankers’ acceptances,
commercial paper, corporate bonds and notes, repurchase agreements, and the State
Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). In accordance with GASB Statement No.
31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment
Pools, investments held by the County Treasurer are stated at fair value. The fair value of
pooled investments is determined quarterly and is based on current market prices received
from the securities custodian. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer.

Credit quality ratings are not available for the District’s investments as all cash is invested as
part of the common investment pool of the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer.
Cash in the County Treasury is considered unclassified as to credit risk because it is not
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The District does not have
any deposits with financial institutions as of June 30, 2018.

The District’s cash and investments for Statement of Cash Flows purposes are considered to
be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash, and investments held by the County of
Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool.

Accounts Receivable: The “direct write-off” method for accounts receivable was applied for
accounts that had been established as uncollectible. A deduction of revenue is recognized
when an account is referred to the Revenue Reimbursement Division of the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector and a Discharge of Accountability is received. The “direct
write-off” method is not in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles. Any
write-offs would be deemed immaterial to the financial statements as a whole. The District
wrote off $0 during the year ending June 30, 2018.




COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital Assets: Capital assets acquired are recorded at cost or estimated cost where cost is
not available. Donated or contributed capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value on
the date received. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Improvements are
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as
applicable. Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straight-line method applied
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Building and improvements: 25 Years

Accounts Payable and Due to Primary Government: Certain costs are incurred by the District
during the current reporting period but are not paid until after the beginning of the next fiscal
period. These costs are reported as payables in the financial statements. The District’s current
accounts payable and due to primary government balances of $15,665 and $3,101,
respectively, as of June 30, 2018, are related to certain contract services and payments for
utility fees.

Net Position: Net position represents the residual interest in the District’'s assets after
liabilities are deducted. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, the fund equity section
on the Statement of Net Position was combined to report total net position and present it in
three broad components:

e Net investment in capital assets — Amount consists of capital assets, including
infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of
debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

e Restricted - Amount consists of net position restricted by external creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabled legislature.

e Unrestricted — Amount consists of all net position that does not meet the definition
“net investment in capital assets” or “restricted” net position.

When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted resources are
depleted first before unrestricted resources are used.

Property Taxes: The District receives monies for service-type property assessments, which
are levied on the properties within the area. Assessments for fees and services are based on
the benefit derived by each parcel within the District.

County of Fresno is responsible for the assessment, collection, and apportionment of property
taxes for all jurisdictions including the school districts and special districts within the County.
The Board levies property taxes on September 1, on property values certified on July 1.
Secured property tax payments are due in two equal installments. The first is generally due
November 1 and delinquent with penalties after December 10, and the second is generally
due on February 1 and delinquent with penalties after April 10. Secured property taxes
become a lien on the property on January 1. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due
upon receipt of the tax bill and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property Taxes (continued): All jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority
from the State Constitution and various legislative provisions contained in the State
Government Codes and Revenue and Taxation Codes. Pursuant to Article CIIIA (known as
Proposition 13) of the State of California Constitution, the County is permitted to levy a
maximum tax of 1 percent of full cash value.

Teeter Plan — County of Fresno elected the alternative property tax treatment (Teeter Plan)
effective July 1, 1993, whereby the County purchases the current secured unpaid taxes
remaining at year-end from participating agencies. In return, the County records taxes
receivable and receives the delinquent penalties and redemption interest accruing on
delinquent collections related to participating agencies. The participating agencies, including
school districts and special districts, in turn, receive their full tax distribution with no liability
for uncollected taxes to the County. Therefore, for participating agencies, revenue is
measurable and available and is recorded in the period the payment of current secured unpaid
taxes is received. The District is a participant of the Teeter Plan.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Governmental Accounting Standards Update: During the year ending June 30, 2018, the
District implemented the following standards with no financial impact on the financial
statements:

GASB Statement No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
other than Pension Plans. The provisions of this statement are effective for financial
statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 82 - Pension Issues- an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No.
68, and No. 73. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of paragraph 7 in a circumstance
in which an employer’s pension liability is measured as of a date other than the employer’s
most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements of paragraph 7 are
effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the
pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 85 — Omnibus 2017. The provisions of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 86 - Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.

Released GASB Statements to be implemented in future financial statements are as follows:

GASB Statement No. 83 — Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Governmental Accounting Standards Update (continued):

GASB Statement No. 84 - Fiduciary Activities. The requirements of this statement are
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 87 - Leases. The requirements of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.

GASB Statement No. 88 - Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings
and Direct Placements. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 89 - Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Construction Period. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2019.

GASB Statement No. 90 — Majority Equity Interests- an amendment of GASB Statements No.
14 and No 61. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2018.

Subseguent Events: In compliance with accounting standards, management has evaluated
events that have occurred after year-end to determine if these events are required to be
disclosed in the financial statements. Management has determined that no events require
disclosure in accordance with accounting standards. These subsequent events have been
evaluated through January 31, 2019, which is the date the financial statements were available
to be issued.

NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2018 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments $ 25,261

Total cash and investments $ 25,261

Summary of Deposits:

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2018 consist of the following:

Deposits with County of Fresno Treasurer $ 25,261

Total cash and investments $ 25,261

See the County of Fresno Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for disclosures related to
risks and fair value measurements.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance
Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and improvements $ 1,115,384 $ - $ - $ 1,115,384
Total capital assets
being depreciated: 1,115,384 - - 1,115,384
Less accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements (1,115,384) - - (1,115,384)
Total accumulated depreciation: (1,115,384) - - (1,115,384)

Capital assets, net $ - $ - $ -

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2018, was $0.

NOTE 4 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
District provides coverage for these losses through commercial insurance policies and/or
through participation in the County of Fresno’s Self-Insurance Program. Refer to the County

of Fresno CAFR for additional information.

NOTE 5 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments and contingencies, undeterminable in amount, include normal recurring
pending claims and litigation. In the opinion of management, based upon discussion with legal
counsel, there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the

financial position of the District.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Fresno

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the
County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the County of Fresno, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
CSA’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
CSA'’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the CSA’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California
January 31, 2019



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

There were no current year findings required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Finding 2017-001 - Financial Reporting
Criteria:

The County’s Department of Public Works and Planning (the Department) should design and
implement internal controls over the financial reporting process to ensure the following: 1)
that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure the proper application of
fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is closed and related financial
statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner allowing for a more efficient
audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to sufficient management review
so that balances are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP).

Condition:

During our fieldwork, we noted the Department did not have adequate year-end closing
procedures. The closing procedures currently in place did not include sufficient review of
accrual items before information was provided to the external auditors. The results of our
testing indicated several material post-closing adjustments missed by the Department for 14
out of 34 audited locations (CSAs, Special Districts, and Disposal Sites), of which we proposed
audit adjustments to properly state the year-end account balances in accordance with GAAP.
All adjustments that were proposed during the current year audit were presented to
management and subsequently posted to the financial statements.

Cause of Condition:

Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial
reporting process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient
management supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending
account balances.

Effect of Condition:

Untimely closing and lack of procedures resulted in extended fieldwork for the audits of the
CSAs and Districts. In addition, material adjustments were proposed and posted to the
financial statements of the affected CSAs and Districts for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Department implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure
that a comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner, and that
sufficient resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the year-end closing
procedures and preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules. We also
recommend that the Department strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that
all transactions related to the fiscal year are properly captured and recorded in the general
ledger to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we
recommend the Department invest in training and cross-training programs for those
employees with financial reporting responsibilities.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Finding 2017-001 - Financial Reporting (continued)

Managements Response:

Management concurs with the finding and recommendation. Year-end procedures will be
modified to ensure timely closing of general ledger and should be in line with the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector. Furthermore, Management will closely review all
supporting schedules to ensure they are recorded properly on the Financial Statements before
providing them to the external auditor. If resources are available, the Department will provide
training to employees with financial reporting responsibilities.

Current Year Status:

Implemented.
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
Division of Financial Assistance

P. O. Box 944212, Sacramento, CA 94244-2120

FINANCIAL SECURITY PACKAGE (PLANNING)

Applicant (Entity) Name: County of Fresno

Project Title: CSA 39AB Request for Additional Connections

Contact Person: Amina Flores-Becker Phone: () 959-600-4259

1. Amount of Assistance Requested: $ 500,000

2. Planning has a term of 5 years.

3. Other Project Funding Sources

Name and Type of Funding Sources Amount Applied Approved Received
No other funding identified. $ |:| |:| |:|
$ [ ] [ ] [ ]
$ [ ] [ ] [ ]

4. Current Year Median Household Income: $ 28,000 per MHI Survey conducted in 2018

5a. Current Year Estimated 395 5b. Check box if less than 50% of
Population Served: residences are permanently occupied [ ]
6. Active Service Connections [ ] Not Applicable
Current Monthly Service Average Monthly Billing
Connection Type Number of Connections Charge (Last 12 months)
Residential 140 $64.60 $19,127.57
Commercial 1 $6460 $21 1.81
Industrial $ $
Other $ $
TOTAL $ $

Rate increase effective date for projected monthly service charges:

7. Projected Annual Operations and Maintenance Costs, $ 1 29 429
Including amortized replacement costs (upon completion): ’

8. Discussion of Material Events, Material Obligation Conditions, and Any Debt Limit

Identify any current prior material events such as bankruptcy, defaults, litigation, grand jury findings, unscheduled draws on reserve
funds, substitution of insurers or their failure to perform, unscheduled draws on credit enhancements, actions taken in anticipation of
filing Chapter 9, rating changes, relevant conditions in material obligations, and any local debt limit.

N/A

Financial Assistance Application Page 1 of 7 Financial Security Package (Planning)
(Rev. 9/2017) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund



9. Water Rate Study

Has a water rate study been conducted for the water system? [ | Yes No

If yes, please submit a complete copy of the Water Rate Study.

N/A

ATTACHMENTS (Check the box next to each item attached to your application.)

F1 — AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (3 years)

F5a — AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE (required for publicly owned
entities)

F5b — CORPORATE RESOLUTION TO APPLY, BORROW AND TO GRANT
SECURITY (required for corporations)

]

]

F6 — RATE ADOPTION RESOLUTION

F10 — NEW SPECIAL TAX, ASSESSMENT DISTRICT, OR SERVICE CHARGE
PROJECTIONS (if applicable)

F11 — RELEVANT SERVICE, MANAGEMENT, CONSOLIDATION, OPERATING, OR
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS (if applicable)

O

]  F12- FUTURE CAPITAL NEEDS (if applicable)

The following attachments are not required for Small DAC/SDAC applying for 100% grant
or principal forgiveness funding. If a loan determination applies, applicant must submit
all attachments.

(] F2- BUDGETS OR PROJECTIONS (2 years)

[] F7 — PLEDGED REVENUES AND FUND(S) RESOLUTION
] F8 — RELATED DEBT OR NO DEBT LETTER
(see Application Information & Instructions)
[ ] F9 — DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY
State Use Only
DWSREF Project #
Project Manager
Date Received
Financial Assistance Application Page 2 of 7 Financial Security Package (Planning)

(Rev. 09/2017) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund



The following related debts are senior to the proposed DWSRF financing:

RELATED DEBT

Attachment F8

Name of
Lender and Debt Term
Title of Debt Debt Security Debt Service Original &
or Loan or Source of Coverage Debt Current | Payment | Interest | Maturity
Number Revenue Requirement | Rating | Amount Balance | Amount Rate Date
$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /
The following related debts are on parity to the proposed Financing Agreement:
Name of
Lender and
Title of Debt Debt Security Debt Service Original Debt Term
or Loan or Source of Coverage Debt Current | Payment | Interest | & Maturity
Number Revenue Requirement | Rating | Amount Balance | Amount Rate Date
$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /
The following related debts are subordinate to the proposed Financing Agreement:
Name of
Lender and Debt Term
Title of Debt Debt Security Debt Service Original &
or Loan or Source of Coverage Debt Current | Payment | Interest | Maturity
Number Revenue Requirement | Rating | Amount Balance | Amount Rate Date
$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /
$ $ $ /

Attach copies of the debt documents associated with the above debts.

Financial Assistance Application

(Rev. 09/2017)

Page 7 of 7

Financial Security Package (Planning)
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund




Attachment F1



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
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BROWN ARMSTRONG

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Fresno

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type
activities of the County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the
County of Fresno, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the CSA’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA'’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the CSA, as of June 30, 2016, and the
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the CSA, and do not purport to, and do not,
present fairly the financial position of the County of Fresno, California, as of June 30, 2016, the changes
in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31,
2017, on our consideration of the CSA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California
January 31, 2017



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and investments $ 26,710
Receivables
Accounts 21,979
Interest 91
Total Current Assets 48,780

Capital assets, net -

Total Assets 48,780

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 8,763

Due to primary government 3,296
Total Liabilities 12,059
NET POSITION

Unrestricted 36,721
Total Net Position $ 36,721

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

Total Operating Revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES
Insurance
Professional services
Specialized departmental expenses
General and administrative
Repairs and maintenance
Utilities
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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96,229

96,229

1,092
39,677
898
4,610
4,633
45,221

96,131

98

680

680

778

35,943

$

36,721



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from users $
Cash paid to suppliers

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on investments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net change in cash and investments
Cash and Investments, Beginning of Year

Cash and Investments, End of Year $

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) $
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Accounts payable
Due to primary government

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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96,535

(90,673)

5,862

672
672

6,534

20,176

26,710

98

306
5,102
356

5,862



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements present only County Service Area No. 39 and are not
intended to present fairly the financial position, changes in financial position, or cash flows of
the County of Fresno, California in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Reporting Entity: County Service Area No. 39, a special district (the District), is an enterprise
fund of the County of Fresno (the County), which is a political subdivision of the State of
California. The District was formed to provide domestic water service to two residential
subdivisions west of the incorporated City of Fresno, near Valentine and Jensen Avenues. The
District constructed a pipeline that continues to transfer water, purchased from the City of
Fresno, to the residents of the District.

The District follows the standards promulgated by GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, to define
the reporting entity. The financial statements include all operations over which the District is
financially accountable. Under these criteria the District is considered a component unit of the
County of Fresno and is reported in the County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR).

The District was formed in 1990 under the provisions of Government Code Section 25210.1
et. seq., and is governed by the County Board of Supervisors. The District is not subject to
federal or state income taxes.

The District itself does not employ any personnel. The Department of Public Works and
Planning staff provides the necessary services such as maintenance and accounting to the
District on a reimbursement basis.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation:

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector
guidance for their enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The District has elected
not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

The District is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its activities for
financial statement purposes. Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of
Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a
Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund and non-major funds aggregated.

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that
the cost and expenses of providing goods or services to its customers be financed or recovered
primarily through users charges; or where the governing body has decided that periodic
determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued):

Enterprise funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or
noncurrent) are included in the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period
in which the liability is incurred. Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those
revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are
reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are
essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-
operating expenses.

Cash and Investments: The District maintains its cash account with the County of Fresno
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool. The County of Fresno is
restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest in time
deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State
Treasurer’s investment pool, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates
of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.

State statutes and the County of Fresno’s investment policy authorize the County Treasurer
to invest in U.S. Government Treasury and Agency Securities, bankers’ acceptances,
commercial paper, corporate bonds and notes, repurchase agreements, and the State
Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). In accordance with GASB Statement No.
31, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment
Pools,” investments held by the County Treasurer are stated at fair value. The fair value of
pooled investments is determined quarterly and is based on current market prices received
from the securities custodian. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer.

Credit quality ratings are not available for the District’s investments as all cash is invested as
part of the common investment pool of the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer.
Cash in the County Treasury is considered unclassified as to credit risk because it is not
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The District does not have
any deposits with financial institutions as of June 30, 2016.

The District’s cash and investments for Statement of Cash Flows purposes are considered to
be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash, and investments held by the County of
Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool.

Accounts Receivable: The “direct write-off” method for accounts receivable was applied for
accounts that had been established as uncollectible. A deduction of revenue is recognized
when an account is referred to the Revenue Reimbursement Division of the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector and a Discharge of Accountability is received. The “direct
write-off” method is not in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles. Any
write-offs would be deemed immaterial to the financial statements as a whole. The District
wrote off $0 during the year ending June 30, 2016.




COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital Assets: Capital assets acquired are recorded at cost or estimated cost where cost is
not available. Donated or contributed capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value on
the date received. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Improvements are
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as
applicable. Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straight-line method applied
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Building and Improvements: 25 Years

Accounts Payable and Due to Primary Government: Certain costs are incurred by the District
during the current reporting period but are not paid until after the beginning of the next fiscal
period. These costs are reported as payables in the financial statements. The District’s current
accounts payable and due to primary government balances of $8,763 and $3,296,
respectively, as of June 30, 2016, are related to certain contract services and payments for
utility fees.

Net Position: Net position represents the residual interest in the District’'s assets after
liabilities are deducted. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, the fund equity section
on the Statement of Net Position was combined to report total net position and present it in
three broad components:

e Net investment in capital assets - Amount consists of capital assets, including
infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of
debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

e Restricted - Amount consists of net position restricted by external creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabled legislature.

e Unrestricted - Amount consists of all net position that does not meet the definition
“net investment in capital assets” or “restricted” net position.

When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted resources are
depleted first before unrestricted resources are used.

Property Taxes: The District receives monies for service-type property assessments, which
are levied on the properties within the area. Assessments for fees and services are based on
the benefit derived by each parcel within the District.

County of Fresno is responsible for the assessment, collection, and apportionment of property
taxes for all jurisdictions including the school districts and special districts within the County.
The Board levies property taxes on September 1, on property values certified on July 1.
Secured property tax payments are due in two equal installments. The first is generally due
November 1 and delinquent with penalties after December 39, and the second is generally
due on February 1 and delinquent with penalties after April 39. Secured property taxes
become a lien on the property on January 1. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due
upon receipt of the tax bill and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property Taxes (continued): All jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority
from the State Constitution and various legislative provisions contained in the State
Government Codes and Revenue and Taxation Codes. Pursuant to Article CIIIA (known as
Proposition 13) of the State of California Constitution, the County is permitted to levy a
maximum tax of 1 percent of full cash value.

Teeter Plan — County of Fresno elected the alternative property tax treatment (Teeter Plan)
effective July 1, 1993, whereby the County purchases the current secured unpaid taxes
remaining at year-end from participating agencies. In return, the County records taxes
receivable and receives the delinquent penalties and redemption interest accruing on
delinquent collections related to participating agencies. The participating agencies, including
school districts and special districts, in turn, receive their full tax distribution with no liability
for uncollected taxes to the County. Therefore, for participating agencies, revenue is
measurable and available and is recorded in the period the payment of current secured unpaid
taxes is received. The District is a participant of the Teeter Plan.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Governmental Accounting Standards Update: During the year ending June 30, 2016, the
District implemented the following standards with no financial impact on the financial
statements:

GASB Statement No. 72 - Fair Value Measurement and Application. The provisions of this
statement are effective for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2015.

GASB Statement No. 73 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension and Related Assets
That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement No. 68, and Amendments to Certain
Provisions of GASB Statements No. 67 and No. 68. The provisions of this statement are
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2015, except those provisions that address
employers and governmental nonemployer contributing entities for pensions that are not
within the scope of GASB Statement No. 68, which are effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2016.

GASB Statement No. 76 — The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State
and Local Governments. The provisions of this statement are effective for financial
statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2015.

GASB Statement No. 79 - Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants. The
requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2015, except for the provisions in paragraphs 18, 19, 23-26 and 40, which are effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Governmental Accounting Standards Update (continued):

Released GASB Statements to be implemented in future financial statements are as follows:

GASB Statement No. 74 - Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than
Pension Plans. The provisions of this statement are effective for financial statements for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016.

GASB Statement No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
other than Pension Plans. The provisions of this statement are effective for financial
statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 77 — Tax Abatement Disclosures. The requirements of this statement
are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015.

GASB Statement No. 78 - Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined
Benefit Plans. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2015.

GASB Statement No. 80 - Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units- an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14. The requirements of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016.

GASB Statement No. 81 - Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016.

GASB Statement No. 82 - Pension Issues- an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No.
68, and No. 73. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of paragraph 7 in a circumstance
in which an employer’s pension liability is measured as of a date other than the employer’s
most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements of paragraph 7 are
effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the
pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 83 - Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018, early adoption is
encouraged.

Subsequent Events: In compliance with accounting standards, management has evaluated
events that have occurred after year-end to determine if these events are required to be
disclosed in the financial statements. Management has determined that no events require
disclosure in accordance with accounting standards. These subsequent events have been
evaluated through January 31, 2017, which is the date the financial statements were available
to be issued.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments $ 26,710

Total cash and investments $ 26,710

Summary of Deposits:

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016 consist of the following:

Deposits with County of Fresno Treasurer $ 26,710

Total cash and investments $ 26,710

See the County of Fresno Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for disclosures related to
risks and fair value measurements.

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 is as follows:

Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance
Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and improvements $ 1,115,384 $ - $ - $ 1,115,384
Total capital assets
being depreciated: 1,115,384 - - 1,115,384

Less accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements (1,115,384)
Total accumulated depreciation: (1,115,384)

(1,115,384)
(1,115,384)

Capital assets, net $ - $ - $ - $ -

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2016, was $0.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 4 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
District provides coverage for these losses through commercial insurance policies and/or
through participation in the County of Fresno’s Self-Insurance Program. Refer to the County
of Fresno CAFR for additional information.

NOTE 5 —- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments and contingencies, undeterminable in amount, include normal recurring
pending claims and litigation. In the opinion of management, based upon discussion with legal

counsel, there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the
financial position of the District.
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BROWN ARMSTRONG

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Fresno

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the
County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the County of Fresno, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2017.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
CSA'’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
CSA'’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify certain
deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs, that we consider to be significant deficiencies: 2016-001 and
2016-002.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the CSA'’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instance of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The CSA’s Response to the Findings

The CSA’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. The CSA’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California
January 31, 2017



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Finding 2016-001 - Financial Reporting
Criteria:

The County should design and implement internal controls over the financial reporting process to
ensure the following: 1) that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure the
proper application of fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is closed and
related financial statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner allowing for a
more efficient audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to sufficient management
review so that balances are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP).

Condition:

During our fieldwork, we noted that the County did not have sufficient year-end closing procedures
in place which would have allowed the financial statements to be issued in a timely manner. We
noted that the closing procedures currently in place did not include a sufficient review of the
information before it was provided to the external auditors. Based upon our audit we noted there
were several post-close adjustments missed by the County. Adjustments made by management
considered to be material to the financial statement were related to beginning fund balance/net
assets for prior period adjustments, accounts payable, accounts receivable, notes receivable,
deferred revenue, capital assets, long term debt, and revenue and expenditure/expense accounts.
Also, during our testing of year-end cutoff procedures and over financial statements account
balances we proposed audit adjustments to properly state the year-end account balances of certain
accounts in accordance with GAAP. All adjustments that were proposed during the current year
audit were presented to management and subsequently posted to the financial statements.

Cause of Condition:

Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial reporting
process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient management
supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending account balances.

Effect of Condition:

Untimely closing and lack of account balances resulted in extended fieldwork for the audits of the
CSAs and Districts. In addition material adjustments were proposed and posted to the financial
statements of the affected CSAs and Districts for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Department implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure that a
comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner, and that sufficient
resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the year-end closing procedures and
preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules. We also recommend that the
Department strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that all transactions related to
the fiscal year are properly captured and recorded in the general ledger to ensure the accuracy
and completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we recommend the Department invest in
training and cross-training programs for those employees with financial reporting responsibilities.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Finding 2016-001 - Financial Reporting (continued)

Managements Response:

Management concurs with the finding and recommendation. Year-end procedures will be modified
to ensure timely closing of general ledger. Checklists will be created to ensure all information
needed to compile financial statements and prepare supporting schedules is available and
complete. To the extent resources are available, the Department will provide training to employees
with financial reporting responsibilities.

Finding 2016-002 - Depreciation Calculations

Criteria

In accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards, internal controls should be designed to
provide reasonable assurance of achieving effective and efficient operations over financial
reporting.

Condition

During our audit, we noted discrepancies when recalculating depreciation expense. Upon further
research and inquiry with County personnel, it was apparent there were mistakes due to data entry

errors among other things.

Cause of Condition

Lack of review procedures over data entry into the system of the County’s Department of Public
Works and Planning

Effect of Condition

Depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation could be misstated which would ultimately
affect the presented amounts of depreciable capital assets.

Recommendation

We recommend the Department implement review procedures to ensure properly data entry of
capital asset information into its system. We further recommend the Department go back through
its current depreciation calculations and correct and update its system accordingly.

Management Response and Corrective Action Plan

Management concurs with the finding and recommendation. Prior to fiscal year end, staff will
review depreciation reports along with depreciation entered in the PeopleSoft financial system to
ensure depreciation calculations are accurate.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Finding 2015-001 - Financial Reporting
Criteria:

The County should design and implement internal controls over the financial reporting process to
ensure the following: 1) that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure the
proper application of fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is closed and
related financial statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner allowing for a
more efficient audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to sufficient management
review so that balances are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP).

Condition:

During our fieldwork, we noted that the County did not have year-end closing procedures in place
which would have allowed the financial statements to be issued in a timely manner. We noted
that the closing procedures currently in place did not include a sufficient review of the information
before it was provided to the external auditors. Based upon our audit we noted there were several
post-close adjustments missed by the County. Adjustments made by management considered to
be material to the financial statement were related to beginning fund balance/net assets for prior
period adjustments, accounts payable, accounts receivable, notes receivable, deferred revenue,
capital assets, long term debt, and revenue and expenditure/expense accounts. Also, during our
testing of year-end cutoff procedures and over financial statements account balances we proposed
audit adjustments to properly state the year-end account balances of certain accounts in
accordance with GAAP. All adjustments that were proposed during the current year audit were
presented to management and subsequently posted to the financial statements.

Cause of Condition:

Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial reporting
process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient management
supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending account balances in
accordance with GAAP.

Effect of Condition:

Untimely closing and lack of account balances presented in accordance with GAAP resulted in final
fieldwork for the audit of the CSA’s being postponed. As a result, material adjustments were
proposed and posted to the CSA'’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the County implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure that a
comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner and that sufficient
resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the CSA’s year-end closing procedures
and preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules. We also recommend that the
CSA strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that all transactions related to the fiscal
year are properly captured and recorded in the general ledger to ensure the accuracy and
completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we recommend the CSA invest in training and
cross-training programs for those employees with financial reporting responsibilities.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Finding 2015-001 - Financial Reporting (continued)

Managements Response:

Management concurs with finding and recommendation. The County’s Department of Public Works
and Planning will review its year-end policies and procedures to ensure timely closing of the general
ledger and to ensure all transactions are properly captured and recorded.

Current Year Status

Not implemented, see current year finding number 2016-001.
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LJINA_/ VY 1IN MAIANIY IO LI/ N

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Fresno

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type
activities of the County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the
County of Fresno, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the CSA’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the CSA, as of June 30, 2017, and the
respective changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the CSA, and do not purport to, and do not,
present fairly the financial position of the County of Fresno, California, as of June 30, 2017, the changes
in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31,
2018, on our consideration of the CSA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California
January 31, 2018



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2017

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and investments $ 29,310
Receivables
Accounts 19,500
Interest 103
Total Current Assets 48,913

Capital assets, net -

Total Assets 48,913
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 12,025
Due to primary government 2,913
Total Liabilities 14,938

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 33,975

Total Net Position $ 33,975

See Independent Auditor’s Report and the accompanying notes.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services $ 102,435
Total Operating Revenues 102,435
OPERATING EXPENSES
Insurance 990
Professional services 37,656
General and administrative 3,815
Repairs and maintenance 11,385
Utilities 51,426
Total Operating Expenses 105,272
Operating Income (Loss) (2,837)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings 91
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 91
Change in Net Position (2,746)
Net Position, Beginning of Year 36,721
Net Position, End of Year $ 33,975

See Independent Auditor’s Report and the accompanying notes.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash received from users $ 104,914
Cash paid to suppliers (102,393)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,521

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest on investments 79
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 79
Net change in cash and investments 2,600

Cash and Investments, Beginning of Year 26,710
Cash and Investments, End of Year $ 29,310

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) $ (2,837)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 2,479
Accounts payable 3,262
Due to primary government (383)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 2,521

See Independent Auditor’s Report and the accompanying notes.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements present only County Service Area No. 39 and are not
intended to present fairly the financial position, changes in financial position, or cash flows of
the County of Fresno, California in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Reporting Entity: County Service Area No. 39, a special district (the District), is an enterprise
fund of the County of Fresno (the County), which is a political subdivision of the State of
California. The District was formed to provide domestic water service to two residential
subdivisions west of the incorporated City of Fresno, near Valentine and Jensen Avenues. The
District constructed a pipeline that continues to transfer water, purchased from the City of
Fresno, to the residents of the District.

The District follows the standards promulgated by GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, to define
the reporting entity. The financial statements include all operations over which the District is
financially accountable. Under these criteria the District is considered a component unit of the
County of Fresno and is reported in the County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR).

The District was formed in 1990 under the provisions of Government Code Section 25210.1
et. seq., and is governed by the County Board of Supervisors. The District is not subject to
federal or state income taxes.

The District itself does not employ any personnel. The Department of Public Works and
Planning staff provides the necessary services such as maintenance and accounting to the
District on a reimbursement basis.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation:

The District is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its activities for
financial statement purposes. Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of
Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a
Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund and non-major funds aggregated.

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that
the cost and expenses of providing goods or services to its customers be financed or recovered
primarily through users charges; or where the governing body has decided that periodic
determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued):

Enterprise funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or
noncurrent) are included in the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period
in which the liability is incurred. Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those
revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are
reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are
essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-
operating expenses.

Cash and Investments: The District maintains its cash account with the County of Fresno
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool. The County of Fresno is
restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest in time
deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State
Treasurer’s investment pool, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates
of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.

State statutes and the County of Fresno’s investment policy authorize the County Treasurer
to invest in U.S. Government Treasury and Agency Securities, bankers’ acceptances,
commercial paper, corporate bonds and notes, repurchase agreements, and the State
Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). In accordance with GASB Statement No.
31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment
Pools, investments held by the County Treasurer are stated at fair value. The fair value of
pooled investments is determined quarterly and is based on current market prices received
from the securities custodian. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer.

Credit quality ratings are not available for the District’s investments as all cash is invested as
part of the common investment pool of the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer.
Cash in the County Treasury is considered unclassified as to credit risk because it is not
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The District does not have
any deposits with financial institutions as of June 30, 2017.

The District’s cash and investments for Statement of Cash Flows purposes are considered to
be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash, and investments held by the County of
Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool.

Accounts Receivable: The “direct write-off” method for accounts receivable was applied for
accounts that had been established as uncollectible. A deduction of revenue is recognized
when an account is referred to the Revenue Reimbursement Division of the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector and a Discharge of Accountability is received. The “direct
write-off” method is not in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles. Any
write-offs would be deemed immaterial to the financial statements as a whole. The District
wrote off $0 during the year ending June 30, 2017.




COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital Assets: Capital assets acquired are recorded at cost or estimated cost where cost is
not available. Donated or contributed capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value on
the date received. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Improvements are
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as
applicable. Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straight-line method applied
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Building and improvements: 25 Years

Accounts Payable and Due to Primary Government: Certain costs are incurred by the District
during the current reporting period but are not paid until after the beginning of the next fiscal
period. These costs are reported as payables in the financial statements. The District’s current
accounts payable and due to primary government balances of $12,025 and $2,913,
respectively, as of June 30, 2017, are related to certain contract services and payments for
utility fees.

Net Position: Net position represents the residual interest in the District’'s assets after
liabilities are deducted. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, the fund equity section
on the Statement of Net Position was combined to report total net position and present it in
three broad components:

e Net investment in capital assets — Amount consists of capital assets, including
infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of
debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

e Restricted - Amount consists of net position restricted by external creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabled legislature.

e Unrestricted — Amount consists of all net position that does not meet the definition
“net investment in capital assets” or “restricted” net position.

When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted resources are
depleted first before unrestricted resources are used.

Property Taxes: The District receives monies for service-type property assessments, which
are levied on the properties within the area. Assessments for fees and services are based on
the benefit derived by each parcel within the District.

County of Fresno is responsible for the assessment, collection, and apportionment of property
taxes for all jurisdictions including the school districts and special districts within the County.
The Board levies property taxes on September 1, on property values certified on July 1.
Secured property tax payments are due in two equal installments. The first is generally due
November 1 and delinquent with penalties after December 10, and the second is generally
due on February 1 and delinquent with penalties after April 10. Secured property taxes
become a lien on the property on January 1. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due
upon receipt of the tax bill and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property Taxes (continued): All jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority
from the State Constitution and various legislative provisions contained in the State
Government Codes and Revenue and Taxation Codes. Pursuant to Article CIIIA (known as
Proposition 13) of the State of California Constitution, the County is permitted to levy a
maximum tax of 1 percent of full cash value.

Teeter Plan — County of Fresno elected the alternative property tax treatment (Teeter Plan)
effective July 1, 1993, whereby the County purchases the current secured unpaid taxes
remaining at year-end from participating agencies. In return, the County records taxes
receivable and receives the delinquent penalties and redemption interest accruing on
delinquent collections related to participating agencies. The participating agencies, including
school districts and special districts, in turn, receive their full tax distribution with no liability
for uncollected taxes to the County. Therefore, for participating agencies, revenue is
measurable and available and is recorded in the period the payment of current secured unpaid
taxes is received. The District is a participant of the Teeter Plan.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Governmental Accounting Standards Update: During the year ending June 30, 2017, the
District implemented the following standards with no financial impact on the financial
statements:

GASB Statement No. 74 — Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than
Pension Plans. The provisions of this statement are effective for financial statements for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016.

GASB Statement No. 77 — Tax Abatement Disclosures. The requirements of this statement
are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015.

GASB Statement No. 78 - Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined
Benefit Plans. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2015.

GASB Statement No. 80 - Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units- an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14. The requirements of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2016.

GASB Statement No. 81 - Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016.

Released GASB Statements to be implemented in future financial statements are as follows:
GASB Statement No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits

other than Pension Plans. The provisions of this statement are effective for financial
statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Governmental Accounting Standards Update (continued):

GASB Statement No. 82 - Pension Issues- an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No.
68, and No. 73. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of paragraph 7 in a circumstance
in which an employer’s pension liability is measured as of a date other than the employer’s
most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements of paragraph 7 are
effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the
pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 83 - Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 84 - Fiduciary Activities. The requirements of this statement are
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 85 - Omnibus 2017. The provisions of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 86 - Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 87 - Leases. The requirements of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.

Subsequent Events: In compliance with accounting standards, management has evaluated
events that have occurred after year-end to determine if these events are required to be
disclosed in the financial statements. Management has determined that no events require
disclosure in accordance with accounting standards. These subsequent events have been
evaluated through January 31, 2018, which is the date the financial statements were available
to be issued.

NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments $ 29,310

Total cash and investments $ 29,310
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Summary of Deposits:

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following:

Deposits with County of Fresno Treasurer $ 29,310

Total cash and investments $ 29,310

See the County of Fresno Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for disclosures related to
risks and fair value measurements.

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows:

Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance
Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and improvements $1,115,384 $ - $ - $1,115,384
Total capital assets
being depreciated: 1,115,384 - - 1,115,384

Less accumulated depreciation:

Building and improvements (1,115,384) - - (1,115,384)
Total accumulated depreciation:  (1,115,384) - - (1,115,384)
Capital assets, net $ - $ - $ - $ -

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2017, was $0.

NOTE 4 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
District provides coverage for these losses through commercial insurance policies and/or
through participation in the County of Fresno’s Self-Insurance Program. Refer to the County
of Fresno CAFR for additional information.

NOTE 5 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments and contingencies, undeterminable in amount, include normal recurring
pending claims and litigation. In the opinion of management, based upon discussion with legal
counsel, there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the
financial position of the District.
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Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Fresno

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the
County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the County of Fresno, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
CSA'’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
CSA'’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain
deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs, that we consider to be a significant deficiency: 2017-001.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the CSA'’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The CSA’s Response to the Finding

The CSA'’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. The CSA’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California
January 31, 2018
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Finding 2017-001 - Financial Reporting
Criteria:

The County’s Department of Public Works and Planning (the Department) should design and
implement internal controls over the financial reporting process to ensure the following: 1)
that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure the proper application of
fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is closed and related financial
statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner allowing for a more efficient
audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to sufficient management review
so that balances are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP).

Condition:

During our fieldwork, we noted the Department did not have adequate year-end closing
procedures. The closing procedures currently in place did not include sufficient review of
accrual items before information was provided to the external auditors. The results of our
testing indicated several material post-closing adjustments missed by the Department for 14
out of 34 audited locations (CSAs, Special Districts, and Disposal Sites), of which we proposed
audit adjustments to properly state the year-end account balances in accordance with GAAP.
All adjustments that were proposed during the current year audit were presented to
management and subsequently posted to the financial statements.

Cause of Condition:

Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial
reporting process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient
management supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending
account balances.

Effect of Condition:

Untimely closing and lack of procedures resulted in extended fieldwork for the audits of the
CSAs and Districts. In addition, material adjustments were proposed and posted to the
financial statements of the affected CSAs and Districts for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Department implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure
that a comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner, and that
sufficient resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the year-end closing
procedures and preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules. We also
recommend that the Department strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that
all transactions related to the fiscal year are properly captured and recorded in the general
ledger to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we
recommend the Department invest in training and cross-training programs for those
employees with financial reporting responsibilities.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Finding 2017-001 - Financial Reporting (continued)

Managements Response:

Management concurs with the finding and recommendation. Year-end procedures will be
modified to ensure timely closing of general ledger and should be in line with the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector. Furthermore, Management will closely review all
supporting schedules to ensure they are recorded properly on the Financial Statements before
providing them to the external auditor. If resources are available, the Department will provide
training to employees with financial reporting responsibilities.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Finding 2016-001 - Financial Reporting
Criteria:

The County should design and implement internal controls over the financial reporting process
to ensure the following: 1) that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure
the proper application of fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is
closed and related financial statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner
allowing for a more efficient audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to
sufficient management review so that balances are presented in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Condition:

During our fieldwork, we noted that the County did not have sufficient year-end closing
procedures in place which would have allowed the financial statements to be issued in a timely
manner. We noted that the closing procedures currently in place did not include a sufficient
review of the information before it was provided to the external auditors. Based upon our
audit we noted there were several post-close adjustments missed by the County.
Adjustments made by management considered to be material to the financial statement were
related to beginning fund balance/net assets for prior period adjustments, accounts payable,
accounts receivable, notes receivable, deferred revenue, capital assets, long term debt, and
revenue and expenditure/expense accounts. Also, during our testing of year-end cutoff
procedures and over financial statements account balances we proposed audit adjustments
to properly state the year-end account balances of certain accounts in accordance with GAAP.
All adjustments that were proposed during the current year audit were presented to
management and subsequently posted to the financial statements.

Cause of Condition:

Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial
reporting process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient
management supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending
account balances.

Effect of Condition:

Untimely closing and lack of account balances resulted in extended fieldwork for the audits of
the CSAs and Districts. In addition, material adjustments were proposed and posted to the
financial statements of the affected CSAs and Districts for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Department implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure
that a comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner, and that
sufficient resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the year-end closing
procedures and preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules. We also
recommend that the Department strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that
all transactions related to the fiscal year are properly captured and recorded in the general
ledger to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we
recommend the Department invest in training and cross-training programs for those
employees with financial reporting responsibilities.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Finding 2016-001 - Financial Reporting (continued)

Managements Response:

Management concurs with the finding and recommendation. Year-end procedures will be
modified to ensure timely closing of general ledger. Checklists will be created to ensure all
information needed to compile financial statements and prepare supporting schedules is
available and complete. To the extent resources are available, the Department will provide
training to employees with financial reporting responsibilities.

Current Year Status

Not implemented, see Finding 2017-001.

Finding 2016-002 - Depreciation Calculations

Criteria

In accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards, internal controls should be designed to
provide reasonable assurance of achieving effective and efficient operations over financial
reporting.

Condition

During our audit, we noted discrepancies when recalculating depreciation expense. Upon
further research and inquiry with County personnel, it was apparent there were mistakes due

to data entry errors among other things.

Cause of Condition

Lack of review procedures over data entry into the system of the County’s Department of
Public Works and Planning

Effect of Condition

Depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation could be misstated which would
ultimately affect the presented amounts of depreciable capital assets.

Recommendation

We recommend the Department implement review procedures to ensure properly data entry
of capital asset information into its system. We further recommend the Department go back
through its current depreciation calculations and correct and update its system accordingly.

Management Response and Corrective Action Plan

Management concurs with the finding and recommendation. Prior to fiscal year end, staff will
review depreciation reports along with depreciation entered in the PeopleSoft financial system
to ensure depreciation calculations are accurate.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Finding 2016-002 - Depreciation Calculations (continued)

Current Year Status

Implemented.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Fresno

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type
activities of the County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the
County of Fresno, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the CSA’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the CSA, as of June 30, 2018, and the
respective changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the CSA, and do not purport to, and do not,
present fairly the financial position of the County of Fresno, California, as of June 30, 2018, the changes
in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31,
2019, on our consideration of the CSA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California
January 31, 2019



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and investments $ 25,261
Receivables
Accounts 3,036
Interest 124
Total Current Assets 28,421

Capital assets, net -

Total Assets 28,421

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 15,665

Due to primary government 3,101
Total Liabilities 18,766
NET POSITION

Unrestricted 9,655
Total Net Position $ 9,655

See Independent Auditor’s Report and the accompanying notes.

3



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

Total Operating Revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES

Insurance
Professional services
General and administrative
Repairs and maintenance
Utilities

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings (loss)

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

See Independent Auditor’s Report and the accompanying notes.
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$

89,099

89,099

1,087
40,682
3,619
2,686
65,342

113,416

(24,317)

(3)

(3)

(24,320)

33,975

$

9,655



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from users
Cash paid to suppliers

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest on investments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net change in cash and investments
Cash and Investments, Beginning of Year

Cash and Investments, End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Due to primary government

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

See Independent Auditor’s Report and the accompanying notes.
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$ 105,563
(109,588)

(4,025)

(24)

S )

(4,049)
29,310

$ 25,261

$ (24,317)

16,464
3,640
188

$ (4,025)



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements present only County Service Area No. 39 and are not
intended to present fairly the financial position, changes in financial position, or cash flows of
the County of Fresno, California in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Reporting Entity: County Service Area No. 39, a special district (the District), is an enterprise
fund of the County of Fresno (the County), which is a political subdivision of the State of
California. The District was formed to provide domestic water service to two residential
subdivisions west of the incorporated City of Fresno, near Valentine and Jensen Avenues. The
District constructed a pipeline that continues to transfer water, purchased from the City of
Fresno, to the residents of the District.

The District follows the standards promulgated by GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, to define
the reporting entity. The financial statements include all operations over which the District is
financially accountable. Under these criteria the District is considered a component unit of the
County of Fresno and is reported in the County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR).

The District was formed in 1990 under the provisions of Government Code Section 25210.1
et. seq., and is governed by the County Board of Supervisors. The District is not subject to
federal or state income taxes.

The District itself does not employ any personnel. The Department of Public Works and
Planning staff provides the necessary services such as maintenance and accounting to the
District on a reimbursement basis.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation:

The District is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its activities for
financial statement purposes. Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of
Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a
Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund and non-major funds aggregated.

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that
the cost and expenses of providing goods or services to its customers be financed or recovered
primarily through users charges; or where the governing body has decided that periodic
determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, and net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued):

Enterprise funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or
noncurrent) are included in the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period
in which the liability is incurred. Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those
revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are
reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are
essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-
operating expenses.

Cash and Investments: The District maintains its cash account with the County of Fresno
Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool. The County of Fresno is
restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest in time
deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State
Treasurer’s investment pool, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates
of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.

State statutes and the County of Fresno’s investment policy authorize the County Treasurer
to invest in U.S. Government Treasury and Agency Securities, bankers’ acceptances,
commercial paper, corporate bonds and notes, repurchase agreements, and the State
Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). In accordance with GASB Statement No.
31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment
Pools, investments held by the County Treasurer are stated at fair value. The fair value of
pooled investments is determined quarterly and is based on current market prices received
from the securities custodian. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer.

Credit quality ratings are not available for the District’s investments as all cash is invested as
part of the common investment pool of the County of Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer.
Cash in the County Treasury is considered unclassified as to credit risk because it is not
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The District does not have
any deposits with financial institutions as of June 30, 2018.

The District’s cash and investments for Statement of Cash Flows purposes are considered to
be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash, and investments held by the County of
Fresno Auditor-Controller/Treasurer as part of the common investment pool.

Accounts Receivable: The “direct write-off” method for accounts receivable was applied for
accounts that had been established as uncollectible. A deduction of revenue is recognized
when an account is referred to the Revenue Reimbursement Division of the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector and a Discharge of Accountability is received. The “direct
write-off” method is not in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles. Any
write-offs would be deemed immaterial to the financial statements as a whole. The District
wrote off $0 during the year ending June 30, 2018.




COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital Assets: Capital assets acquired are recorded at cost or estimated cost where cost is
not available. Donated or contributed capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value on
the date received. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Improvements are
capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as
applicable. Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straight-line method applied
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Building and improvements: 25 Years

Accounts Payable and Due to Primary Government: Certain costs are incurred by the District
during the current reporting period but are not paid until after the beginning of the next fiscal
period. These costs are reported as payables in the financial statements. The District’s current
accounts payable and due to primary government balances of $15,665 and $3,101,
respectively, as of June 30, 2018, are related to certain contract services and payments for
utility fees.

Net Position: Net position represents the residual interest in the District’'s assets after
liabilities are deducted. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, the fund equity section
on the Statement of Net Position was combined to report total net position and present it in
three broad components:

e Net investment in capital assets — Amount consists of capital assets, including
infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of
debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

e Restricted - Amount consists of net position restricted by external creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabled legislature.

e Unrestricted — Amount consists of all net position that does not meet the definition
“net investment in capital assets” or “restricted” net position.

When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted resources are
depleted first before unrestricted resources are used.

Property Taxes: The District receives monies for service-type property assessments, which
are levied on the properties within the area. Assessments for fees and services are based on
the benefit derived by each parcel within the District.

County of Fresno is responsible for the assessment, collection, and apportionment of property
taxes for all jurisdictions including the school districts and special districts within the County.
The Board levies property taxes on September 1, on property values certified on July 1.
Secured property tax payments are due in two equal installments. The first is generally due
November 1 and delinquent with penalties after December 10, and the second is generally
due on February 1 and delinquent with penalties after April 10. Secured property taxes
become a lien on the property on January 1. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due
upon receipt of the tax bill and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property Taxes (continued): All jurisdictions within California derive their taxing authority
from the State Constitution and various legislative provisions contained in the State
Government Codes and Revenue and Taxation Codes. Pursuant to Article CIIIA (known as
Proposition 13) of the State of California Constitution, the County is permitted to levy a
maximum tax of 1 percent of full cash value.

Teeter Plan — County of Fresno elected the alternative property tax treatment (Teeter Plan)
effective July 1, 1993, whereby the County purchases the current secured unpaid taxes
remaining at year-end from participating agencies. In return, the County records taxes
receivable and receives the delinquent penalties and redemption interest accruing on
delinquent collections related to participating agencies. The participating agencies, including
school districts and special districts, in turn, receive their full tax distribution with no liability
for uncollected taxes to the County. Therefore, for participating agencies, revenue is
measurable and available and is recorded in the period the payment of current secured unpaid
taxes is received. The District is a participant of the Teeter Plan.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Governmental Accounting Standards Update: During the year ending June 30, 2018, the
District implemented the following standards with no financial impact on the financial
statements:

GASB Statement No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
other than Pension Plans. The provisions of this statement are effective for financial
statements for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 82 - Pension Issues- an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No.
68, and No. 73. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of paragraph 7 in a circumstance
in which an employer’s pension liability is measured as of a date other than the employer’s
most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements of paragraph 7 are
effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the
pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 85 — Omnibus 2017. The provisions of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.

GASB Statement No. 86 - Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.

Released GASB Statements to be implemented in future financial statements are as follows:

GASB Statement No. 83 — Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. The requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Governmental Accounting Standards Update (continued):

GASB Statement No. 84 - Fiduciary Activities. The requirements of this statement are
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 87 - Leases. The requirements of this statement are effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.

GASB Statement No. 88 - Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings
and Direct Placements. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 89 - Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Construction Period. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2019.

GASB Statement No. 90 — Majority Equity Interests- an amendment of GASB Statements No.
14 and No 61. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2018.

Subseguent Events: In compliance with accounting standards, management has evaluated
events that have occurred after year-end to determine if these events are required to be
disclosed in the financial statements. Management has determined that no events require
disclosure in accordance with accounting standards. These subsequent events have been
evaluated through January 31, 2019, which is the date the financial statements were available
to be issued.

NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2018 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments $ 25,261

Total cash and investments $ 25,261

Summary of Deposits:

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2018 consist of the following:

Deposits with County of Fresno Treasurer $ 25,261

Total cash and investments $ 25,261

See the County of Fresno Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for disclosures related to
risks and fair value measurements.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Beginning Deletions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Balance
Capital assets being depreciated:
Building and improvements $ 1,115,384 $ - $ - $ 1,115,384
Total capital assets
being depreciated: 1,115,384 - - 1,115,384
Less accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements (1,115,384) - - (1,115,384)
Total accumulated depreciation: (1,115,384) - - (1,115,384)

Capital assets, net $ - $ - $ -

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2018, was $0.

NOTE 4 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
District provides coverage for these losses through commercial insurance policies and/or
through participation in the County of Fresno’s Self-Insurance Program. Refer to the County

of Fresno CAFR for additional information.

NOTE 5 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments and contingencies, undeterminable in amount, include normal recurring
pending claims and litigation. In the opinion of management, based upon discussion with legal
counsel, there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the

financial position of the District.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Fresno

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of the
County Service Area No. 39 (the CSA), a component unit of the County of Fresno, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the CSA’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
CSA’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
CSA'’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the CSA’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the CSA’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the CSA’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

BROWN ARMSTRONG
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Bakersfield, California
January 31, 2019



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

There were no current year findings required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
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COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Finding 2017-001 - Financial Reporting
Criteria:

The County’s Department of Public Works and Planning (the Department) should design and
implement internal controls over the financial reporting process to ensure the following: 1)
that the general ledger undergoes adequate procedures to ensure the proper application of
fiscal year cut-off, 2) that the general ledger fiscal year period is closed and related financial
statement supporting schedules are prepared in a timely manner allowing for a more efficient
audit, and 3) that the final trial balance figures are subject to sufficient management review
so that balances are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP).

Condition:

During our fieldwork, we noted the Department did not have adequate year-end closing
procedures. The closing procedures currently in place did not include sufficient review of
accrual items before information was provided to the external auditors. The results of our
testing indicated several material post-closing adjustments missed by the Department for 14
out of 34 audited locations (CSAs, Special Districts, and Disposal Sites), of which we proposed
audit adjustments to properly state the year-end account balances in accordance with GAAP.
All adjustments that were proposed during the current year audit were presented to
management and subsequently posted to the financial statements.

Cause of Condition:

Internal controls have not been suitably designed and implemented over the financial
reporting process to ensure that the timely closure of the general ledger and sufficient
management supervision of this process results in reliable and materially correct ending
account balances.

Effect of Condition:

Untimely closing and lack of procedures resulted in extended fieldwork for the audits of the
CSAs and Districts. In addition, material adjustments were proposed and posted to the
financial statements of the affected CSAs and Districts for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Department implement stronger policies and procedures to ensure
that a comprehensive closing of the general ledger is performed in a timely manner, and that
sufficient resources and adequate oversight are available to oversee the year-end closing
procedures and preparation of the financial statement supporting schedules. We also
recommend that the Department strengthen its year-end closing procedures to ensure that
all transactions related to the fiscal year are properly captured and recorded in the general
ledger to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements. Lastly, we
recommend the Department invest in training and cross-training programs for those
employees with financial reporting responsibilities.

15



COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 39
COUNTY OF FRESNO, CALIFORNIA
(A Component Unit of the County of Fresno)
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Finding 2017-001 - Financial Reporting (continued)

Managements Response:

Management concurs with the finding and recommendation. Year-end procedures will be
modified to ensure timely closing of general ledger and should be in line with the Auditor-
Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector. Furthermore, Management will closely review all
supporting schedules to ensure they are recorded properly on the Financial Statements before
providing them to the external auditor. If resources are available, the Department will provide
training to employees with financial reporting responsibilities.

Current Year Status:

Implemented.
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
Division of Financial Assistance

P. O. Box 944212, Sacramento, CA 94244-2120

TECHNICAL PACKAGE (PLANNING)

Applicant (Entity) Name: County of Fresno

Project Title: CSA 39AB Request for Additional Connections

Contact Person: Amina Flores-Becker Phone: (559 )559-600-4259

l. Technical Information

1. Describe the water system and its facilities. Include details relating to source, storage, treatment, and distribution
system. Attach a schematic/map of the system which includes existing facilities (label as Attachment T1).
The CSA39AB water system is divided into two components, one serving the northern portion of the service area known as Zone B and
the other serving the southern portion of the area known as Zone A. The two components are connected via an 8-inch main in Marks
Avenue. The combined system is comprised of approximately 7.8 miles of predominantly 6- and 8-inch water mains providing water
supply to approximately 141 connections, including West Park Elementary School. The system is located in Fresno County, near the
City of Fresno and receives water supply through a master meter connection from the City of Fresno. All of the parcels are metered.

The water system does not have water storage. The distribution system is looped consisting of 40,000 linear feet of PVC water mains
and service lines ranging from 4-inches to 8-inches in diameter. The system has 63 valves, three blow-offs, and 16 fire hydrants.

Zone A consists of about 40 acres of residential area bounded by S Valentine and N Marks Avenue between W North Avenue and W
Beran Way.

Zone B consists of 54 acres of residential area bounded by Church, Valentine, Jensen, and Marks Avenues. Both zones have master
meters at the point of connection to the City of Fresno’s distribution system. Zone A’s master meter is located near the intersection of
North and Newman Avenues. Zone B’s master meter is located at the intersection of Church and West Avenues. Zones A and B are
connected by two miles of 8-inch pipeline along Marks Avenue between Church and Muscat Avenues. The City of Fresno’s
responsibility ends at the master meters.

See Attachment T1

2. Describe the problem being addressed by the planning project and attach supporting documents of the problem
(label as Attachment T2).

The problems to be addressed by this planning project are two-fold:

Supply Reliability:

The existing private wells in the area have water elevations at such a depth they are in danger of being unable to supply water in
the event of another drought. Up to 20 residences (approximately 66 people) and an institutional connection (a church) are at
risk due to this concern. To date, there have been 6 families with dry wells and the church, 3 families and the church that have
had to dig deeper to access water, 1 family that replaced a water pump, 1 senior couple that hauls water, and 1 family that uses
their irrigation well for water. Additionally, system modeling shows the existing system of the CSA is unable to meet fire flow
demands while maintaining sufficient system pressure due to insufficient "looping" within the localized water system.

Supply Quality:

The existing private wells experience elevated levels of nitrate, 14 of the 20 homes sampled exceeded the nitrate MCL (see
sampling results Attachment T2). The exceeding nitrate levels are a real concern, especially for families with pregnant women,
children under 6 months, and women that are breastfeeding. To ensure that these vulnerable groups remain healthy, families
must budget the cost of bottled water for drinking and cooking, which means an additional financial strain on an already tight
annual budget of $28,000 (based on a 2018 MHI Survey of the project area).

Finally, the Boundary Lines for CSA 39AB leave interested homeowner unable to connect to existing waterlines. Of the 20
homes and 1 institutional connection (church), all are either directly in-front of or within 1 mile (if not less) of an existing
waterline.

Financial Assistance Application Page 1 of 8 Technical Package (Planning)
(REV. 07/2016) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund




3. Has an analysis of alternatives been completed? Make sure the analysis includes consolidation as an alternative.
O ves (Attach a copy of the analysis and label as Attachment T3)
i NO

4. Attach a Scope of the Project (label as Attachment T4).

5. Attach a signed Certification for Compliance with Water Metering (label as Attachment T5a).
6. Attach a schematic/map of the proposed facilities if available (label as Attachment T6).

7. Attach an Engineering Report if available (label as Attachment T7).

8. Attach a copy of the applicable professional engineering services contract if available (label as Attachment T8).

9. Proposed eligible start date (see instructions): 10/24/2018

10. Estimated project expenditures incurred prior to executing a financing agreement, which the entity intends to
claim for reimbursement: $ 60,000

Il. WATER RIGHTS, WATER CONSERVATION AND URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT

WATER RIGHTS

1. Describe the nature of the water rights applicable to your water source and attach water rights documentation
related to water source (label as Attachment T9).

The CSA is served water through a connection to the City of Fresno. The City of Fresno utilizes
surface and groundwater to supply water to its customers. In this area of the City's system, the
groundwater wells contribute predominantly and do not require or carry documentation.

Attachment T9 is the executed agreement between City of Fresno and County of Fresno County.

WATER DIVERSION REPORTING

2. Are you a water diverter in compliance with Water Code Section 51037
O ves I No

For information see: http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/water issues/programs/diversion use/

WATER CONSERVATION

3. If you are a retail water supplier, are you in compliance with the State Water Board’s emergency drought
regulations at Section 863-865 of title 23 of the California Code of Regulations?

M veEs O No

4. Are you an urban water supplier as defined in Water Code Section 10608.127?

O ves i Nno

Urban water suppliers must submit one of the following:
O water Conservation Program (label as Attachment T10)

O Signed the Memorandum of Understanding regarding urban water conservation in California (label as
Attachment T11)

0 urban Water Management Plan per Water Code Section 10653 (label as Attachment T12).

Financial Assistance Application Page 2 of 8 Technical Package (Planning)
(REV. 07/2016) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund




ATTACHMENT CHECKLIST

Check the box next to each item attached to your application.

T1 —Schematic/Map of System and Facilities

T2 — Supporting Documents of the Problem

O 13- Analysis of Alternatives (if applicable)

T4 — Scope of the Project (see attached outline)

[0 T5a - Certification for Compliance with Water Metering Form
O 16 - Schematic/Map of the Proposed Facilities (if available)
O 17- Engineering Report (if available)

O T8 - Contract for Professional Engineering Services (if available)
T9 — Water Rights Documentation (if applicable)

O 110 - water Conservation Program (if applicable)

O 711 — Memorandum of Understanding (if applicable)

O 112 - Urban Water Management Plan (if applicable)

Financial Assistance Application Page 3 of 8
(REV. 07/2016)

Technical Package (Planning)
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund




STATE OF CALIFORNIA FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

Division of Financial Assistance
P. O. Box 944212, Sacramento, CA 94244-2120

Attachment T5a

CERTIFICATION FOR COMPLIANCE WITH WATER METERING
REQUIREMENTS FOR FUNDING APPLICATIONS

Funding Agency
Name:

Funding Program
Name: Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

Appli t(A
Nt (AgeneY - Gounty of Fresno

State Water Resources Control Board

Please check one of the boxes below and sign and date this form.

As the authorized representative for the applicant agency, | certify under penalty of perjury
that the agency is not an urban water supplier, as that term is understood pursuant to the
provisions of section 529.5 of the Water Code.

[] As the authorized representative for the applicant agency, | certify under penalty of perjury
that the applicant agency has fully complied with the provisions of Division 1, Chapter 8, Article
3.5 of the California Water Code (sections 525 through 529.7 inclusive) and that the ordinances,
rules, or regulations submitted with this certification as listed below have been duly adopted and
are in effect as of this date.

| understand that the Funding Agency will rely on this signed certification in order to
approve funding and that false and/or inaccurate representations in this Certification
Statement may result in loss of all funds awarded to the applicant for its project.
Additionally, for the aforementioned reasons, the Funding Agency may withhold
disbursement of project funds, and/or pursue any other applicable legal remedy.

Steven E. White

Name of Authorized Representative Title
(Please print)

Signature of Authorized Representative Date

Financial Assistance Application Page 8 of 8 Technical Package (Planning)
(REV. 07/2016) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
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County of Fresno Attachment T4
CSA 39AB Water System Improvements Project

SCOPE OF THE PROJECT
FRESNO COUNTY — CSA 39AB
PROJECT NO. [ ]

Task No.

Task Description

Pre-Design and Engineering Report
e Prepare an engineering report consistent with Construction Funding
Application guidelines including the following sections:
o Water System Information
Problem Description
Alternative Solution Analysis
Selected Construction Project
Proposed Schedule
Attachments to the Engineering Report

O O O O O

Governance Support
o Prepare required LAFCo documents to modify CSA 39AB boundaries to

2 encompass new connections.
e Prepare Municipal Service Review
e Coordinate with LAFCo for processing of CSA boundary modification.
Water Rate Adjustment
3 e Complete a water rate study for the community with recommendations of
new water rates.
e Conduct Proposition 218 election to adopt water rates.
Right of Way Investigation
e Evaluate and determine if additional right-of-way is necessary for the
improvement identified in Task 1.
4 e Prepare appropriate documentation to acquire right-of-way or easements,

as needed.
o Note: actual right-of-way acquisition costs will be included in the
construction funding assistance application.
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Attachment T4

CSA 39AB Water System Improvements Project

Construction Document Preparation

Conduct topographic survey of proposed project limits, as needed based
on selected alternative.
Perform geotechnical investigation for proposed project.
Prepare draft construction documents for the selected alternative including
plans, specifications and Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction
Cost.
o Level of completion of draft construction documents will depending
on selected alternative and funding remaining. It is anticipated
90% construction documents can be accommodated.
o Construction documents will be finalized with construction funding
to capture new requirements or code changes.

Environmental Document Preparation

Review project description and CEQA/NEPA guidelines for possible
exemptions.
Prepare CEQA/NEPA documents for selected alternative in compliance
with CEQA/NEPA requirements for SWRCB SRF funded projects.

o Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration is the assumed level of

CEQA/NEAP documents required.

This task will include required CEQA/NEPA studies such as biological and
cultural resources studies.

TMF Assessment

Prepare TMF assessment based on selected alternative and SWRCB
guidelines.

Prepare all supporting documentation necessary to fulfill and complete
requirements outlined in SWRCB TMF Assessment Form for Community
Water Systems.

Grant Administration & Project Support

Miscellaneous project costs such as permitting fees and grant
administration.
This task assumes grant term will be approximately 18 months.

9 °

Project Contingency

Accommodate changing project requirements that arise throughout the
execution of Tasks 1 through 8.




County of Fresno Attachment T4
CSA 39AB Water System Improvements Project

PROJECT BUDGET SHEET
FRESNO COUNTY - CSA 39AB
PROJECT NO. [ 1
Line Line Item Description Line Item Budget
Item No.

1 Pre-Design and Engineering Report $55,000
2 Governance Support $45,000
3 Water Rate Adjustment $55,000
4 Right of Way Investigation $17,000
5 Construction Document Preparation $145,000
6 Environmental Document Preparation $65,000
7 TMF Assessment $30,000
8 Grant Administration & Project Support $50,000
9 Project Contingency $38,000

Total $500,000




County of Fresno Attachment T4
CSA 39AB Water System Improvements Project

PROJECT SCHEDULING FOR PLANNING
FRESNO COUNTY - CSA 39AB

PROJECT NO. [ 1
Line Item . . Expected Time of Completion
No. Line Item Description from the Date of Execution of a
Funding Agreement [
1 Pre-Design and Engineering Report 3 Months
2 Governance Support 4 Months
3 Water Rate Adjustment 9 Months
4 Right of Way Investigation 6 Months
5 Construction Document Preparation 9 Months
6 Environmental Document Preparation 6 Months
7 TMF Assessment 3 Months
8 Grant Administration & Project Support 18 Months
9 Project Contingency 18 Months

A pictorial representation of the schedule is provided below to illustrate activities which will
overlap.

Task/Month 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

Pre-Design and
Engineering Report

Governance Support

Water Rate
Adjustment

Right of Way
Investigation

Construction
Document Preparation
Environmental
Document Preparation

TMF Assessment

Grant Administration &
Project Support

Project Contingency
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
Division of Financial Assistance
P. O. Box 944212, Sacramento, CA 94244-2120

ENVIRONMENTAL PACKAGE (PLANNING)

Applicant (Entity) Name: County of Fresno

Project Title: CSA 39AB Request for Additional Connections | Project Number:

Contact Person: Amina Flores-Becker Phone: ( )559-600-4259

I. California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Status

1. Has a CEQA document been completed which identifies any portion of the planning project?

NOTE: A/l funded projects must be circulated at the Office of Planning and Research, State
Clearinghouse (OPR)

[0 Yes - Document name:
Lead agency approval date:
State Clearinghouse Number:

Attach a copy of the Notice of Exemption (label as Attachment E1).

M No

2. Has a CEQA lead agency been identified for the planning project?

NOTE: If the applicant is a public agency, then they are their own CEQA lead agency and must file a Notice of
Exemption stating the water system will be utilizing State Revolving Funds to conduct a planning study.

[/ Yes - CEQA lead agency: County of Fresno

Attach a copy of the Notice of Exemption that was filed at OPR and the County (label as
Attachment E1).
The following exemptions can be applied to planning / feasibility studies:

o Statutory Exemption (no ground disturbing activities)
Feasibility and Planning Studies (CCR, Title 14, Article 18, Section 15262)

o Categorical Exemption (if project includes pilot studies, test wells, grading, boreholes, etc.)
Class 6, Information Collection (CCR, title 14, Article 19, Section 15306)

NOTE: This exemption class may need further evaluation if the planning project is located in an area
where the project could result in impacts to an environmental resource of hazardous or critical concern.

0 No - For private, mutual and investor-owned utilities, the State Water Board may be the CEQA Lead
Agency and will file a Notice of Exemption to conduct a planning study.

Financial Assistance Application Page 1 of 3 Environmental Package (Planning)
(REV. 02/2015) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund



Il. General Information

1. Describe any grading, excavation, pilot wells, or other ground-breaking activities that may be a part of the planning
project. Include a parcel or project schematic map (label as Attachment E2).

N/A during Planning

2. List and describe any other related permits and/or other public approvals required including those requiring local or
state approvals.

N/A during Planning

3. Is the project located in an area designated as:

Yes No

Critical habitat for special status species
Critical habitat for an endangered species
Unique habitat (e.g., wildlife refuge, deer wintering range)
Important farmland

Wetlands

Wild and scenic rivers

Officially designated scenic area
Archeological sites

Floodplains

Hazardous Waste and Substances Site
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4. Unusual Circumstances: Evaluate the following elements to determine if there are any unusual circumstances.
For any “Yes” answers discuss the possibility of significant environmental impact resulting from the unusual
circumstance. Use attachments if necessary, or reference any attached documents (label as Attachment E3).

<
o
7]

In an area of undisturbed, unique, or high-quality habitat

On or adjacent to wildlife migration routes

In an area of unique recreational facilities or resources

On or adjacent to a unique stream or water body

Involves removal of mature, scenic trees

Involves grading in a waterway or wetland

Involves a substantial alteration of ground contours

Involves new or increased use of a critically depleted groundwater basin or groundwater basin
subject to salinity intrusion

In an area with important mineral resources

Involves production of significant amounts of solid wastes or litter

Involves substantial new or increased emission of dust, ash, smoke, fumes, odors, or other
pollutants

Involves substantial change in noise or vibration levels in vicinity (beyond the property line)
In an area of sensitive noise receptors

On slopes of 10 percent or more or on highly erodible soil

In an officially mapped area of severe geologic hazard

Involves new or increased use or disposal of hazardous materials, flammables, or explosives
Involves substantial change in demand for municipal services

Involves traffic impacts in an area with traffic problems

Involves substantial increase in fuel consumption (electricity, oil, natural gas, etc.)

On United States Forest Service land
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Attachment Checklist

Check the box next to each item attached to your application.

O E1- CEQA Document (if applicable)
O E2- Parcel or Project Schematic Map
O E3 - unusual Circumstances (if applicable)

Financial Assistance Application Page 3 of 3 Environmental Package (Planning)
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